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PART I
 
ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS.
 

History and Development of Business
 
Kelly Services, Inc. (“Kelly” or the “Company”), a successor to the business established by William R. Kelly in 1946, was incorporated under the laws of
Delaware on August 27, 1952. Founded as a temporary staffing company, we have been engaged in providing staffing services to customers in a variety of
industries throughout our 57-year history.
 
Kelly operates 2,500 company-owned offices, both stand-alone and customer on-site, in 26 countries throughout the world. Each office provides a specific mix of
services from one or more of our divisions and subsidiaries, according to market demand. We serve a cross-section of customers from industry, commerce,
government and various professions. Our clients include some of the largest corporations in the world and successful niche businesses.
 
Kelly’s history has been marked by strategic growth and global expansion. This growth into new geographic areas, as well as business and service lines, has been
achieved through both internally developed start-up operations and outside acquisitions of existing companies. When considering acquisitions, we seek out
companies with strong leadership, a team-based culture and shared business values in locations that demonstrate demand for quality staffing services.
 
Over the years, Kelly has developed a number of specialized staffing services in response to our changing global markets, new economies, and advances in
workplace technology. We have also designed many assessment, training, placement and evaluation systems that ensure Kelly’s temporary staff meet the needs of
our diverse client base.
 
We are headquartered in Troy, Michigan, U.S.A.
 

Geographic Breadth of Services
 
We provide temporary staffing services to a diversified group of customers through offices located in major cities throughout North America (the U.S., Canada,
Puerto Rico and Mexico); Europe (Belgium, Denmark, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Russia, Spain, Sweden,
Switzerland and the United Kingdom); and the Asia-Pacific region (Australia, Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Malaysia, New Zealand, the Philippines, Singapore
and Thailand).
 

Description of Business Segments
 
Kelly’s operations are divided into three principal business segments: U.S. Commercial Staffing; Professional, Technical and Staffing Alternatives (PTSA); and
International.
 
U.S. Commercial Staffing
 Kelly’s U.S. Commercial Staffing segment includes: Kelly Office Services, offering trained employees who work in word processing and data entry, and as
administrative support staff; KellyConnect, providing staff for call centers, technical support hotlines and telemarketing units; Kelly Educational Staffing, the first
nationwide program supplying qualified substitute teachers; Kelly Merchandising Services, including support staff for seminars, sales and trade shows; Kelly
Electronic Assembly Services, providing technicians to serve the automotive, aerospace and pharmaceutical industries; Kelly Light Industrial Services, placing
staff experienced in facilities management, materials handling and more; KellySelect, a temporary-to-fulltime service that gives customers and temporary staff an
opportunity to try out and evaluate before making a fulltime employment decision; and KellyDirect, a permanent placement service delivery process used across
all business units in the U.S.
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Professional, Technical and Staffing Alternatives (PTSA)
 Our PTSA segment is comprised of the Professional and Technical Staffing group and the Staffing Alternatives group. Professional and Technical Staffing
consists of a number of industry-specific services including: Kelly Scientific Resources, providing entry-level to Ph.D. employees to fill positions requiring
expertise in biology, chemistry, geology, biochemistry and physics; Kelly Healthcare Resources, providing a variety of professionals to work in hospitals,
ambulatory care centers, HMOs and other health insurance companies; Kelly Home Care Services, supplying families with nurses, home health aides and
caregivers; Kelly Financial Resources, serving the needs of corporate finance departments, accounting firms and financial institutions with professional and
support personnel; Kelly Law Registry, placing attorneys and paralegals at more than 1,400 major corporations and law firms across the country; Kelly IT
Resources, providing information technology specialists, website developers and other support staff; Kelly Automotive Services Group, supporting the auto
industry since 1946, this segment places staff at all levels—from engineers to systems analysts; Kelly Engineering Resources, supplying chemical, electrical,
mechanical, aerospace and petrochemical engineers to industries around the world; and Kelly FedSecure, placing professionals across all skills in jobs requiring
security clearances, primarily to government contractors.
 
Our Staffing Alternatives group includes: Kelly Staff Leasing, which allows customers to transfer the benefits and payroll administration of employees to us; Kelly
Management Services, our outsourcing business that provides operational management of entire departments or business functions; Kelly Vendor Management
Solutions, supplying clients with an array of suppliers who provide professional, technical or commercial staffing; HRfirst, a recruitment consulting business; and
Kelly HR Consulting, helping clients with strategic staffing, training, compensation and benefits.
 
International
 In addition to providing commercial, professional and technical staffing, our International segment meets the specific needs of global customers with these
programs: KellyAssess, providing personnel assessment techniques for selection, promotion and performance management; Kelly MultiHire, our recruiting and
human resources services and KellyConnect, our global call center service.
 
Financial information regarding Kelly’s industry segments is included in Part II, Item 8 of this filing.
 

Business Strategy
 
Kelly’s temporary staffing services are designed to help our customers meet a variety of human resource needs in a flexible, efficient, cost-effective manner.
Typically, customers turn to Kelly to staff up during peak workloads caused by predictable factors such as inventories, special projects or vacations; and non-
predictable periods resulting from illness, emergency or rapidly changing economic conditions.
 
Our services offer customers a number of advantages. Because we handle advertising, screening, interviewing, testing and training, clients are spared considerable
expense. And, because customers pay an hourly rate based on the hours of service of a specific employee, record keeping and overhead are eliminated.
 

Business Operations
 
Service Marks
 
Kelly owns numerous service marks that are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office, the European Union Community Trademark Office
and numerous individual country trademark offices.
 
Seasonal Implications
 Kelly’s quarterly operating results are affected by the seasonality of our customers’ businesses. Demand for our services historically has been lower during the
first and fourth quarters as a result of holidays, and typically begins to increase during the second and third quarters of the following year.
 
Working Capital
 We believe there are no unusual or special working capital requirements in the staffing service industry.
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Customers
 We are not dependent on any single customer, or a limited segment of customers. Our largest single customer accounted for approximately 6% of the total sales in
2003.
 
Government Contracts
 Although Kelly conducts business under various government contracts, that portion of our business is not significant.
 
Competition
 The worldwide temporary staffing services industry is very competitive and highly fragmented, with limited barriers for entry into the market. Kelly is considered
to be a pioneer in the staffing industry and is one of the largest global suppliers of staffing services, competing in global, national, regional and local markets.
 
In the United States, approximately 100 national competitors operate; and more than 20,000 smaller organizations compete in varying degrees at local levels.
Several similar companies—global, national, and local—compete in foreign markets. In 2003, Kelly’s largest competitors were Adecco, S.A., Manpower, Inc.,
Randstad Holding N.V., Vedior N.V., Spherion Corporation and CDI Corporation.
 
Key factors that influence success in our industry include geographic coverage, breadth of service, quality of service and price.
 
Geographic presence is of utmost importance, as temporary employees are generally unwilling to travel great distances for assignment, and customers prefer
working with companies in their local market. Breadth of service has become more critical as customers seek “one-stop shopping” for all their staffing needs.
 
Quality of service, another factor, is highly dependent on the availability of qualified, competent temporary employees, and Kelly’s ability to recruit, screen, train,
retain and manage a pool of employees who match the skills required by particular customers. Conversely, during an economic downturn, Kelly must balance
competitive pricing pressures with the need to retain a qualified workforce.
 
Price competition in the staffing industry is intense—particularly for office clerical and light industrial personnel—and pricing pressure from customers and
competitors continues to be significant.
 
In summary, Kelly expects that the level of competition will continue to remain high in the foreseeable future—a factor that could limit our ability to increase or
maintain our market share and profitability.
 
Environmental Concerns
 Because we are involved in a service business, Kelly is not materially impacted by federal, state or local laws that regulate the discharge of materials into the
environment.
 
Employees
 We employ approximately 1,300 people at our corporate headquarters in Troy, Michigan, and approximately 6,600 staff at company-owned branch offices
throughout the world. In 2003, we placed nearly 700,000 temporary employees.
 
Although our services may be provided in customer’s facilities, Kelly remains the employer of our temporary employees, with responsibility for their assignment
and reassignment. As an employer, Kelly is therefore responsible for paying Social Security, Medicare and disability taxes, workers’ compensation,
unemployment compensation taxes and their equivalents outside the United States, as well as administering employee payroll deductions for Social Security,
Medicare and income taxes.
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Foreign Operations
 
For information regarding sales, earnings from operations and long-lived assets by domestic and foreign operations, please refer to the information presented in
the Segment Disclosures note to our consolidated financial statements, presented in Part II, Item 8 of this report.
 

Risk Factors
 
Highly Competitive Markets
 The worldwide staffing services market is highly competitive with limited barriers to entry. Kelly competes in global, national, regional and local markets with
full-service and specialized temporary staffing companies. In addition to Kelly, several competitors, including Adecco, Manpower, Randstad, Vedior, Spherion
and CDI have very substantial marketing and financial resources. Price competition in the staffing industry is significant, particularly for the provision of office
clerical and light industrial personnel, and pricing pressures from competitors and customers are increasing. Kelly expects that the level of competition will
remain high in the future, which could limit Kelly’s ability to maintain or increase its market share or profitability.
 
Fluctuations in General Economic Conditions
 Demand for staffing services is significantly affected by the general level of economic activity and unemployment in the United States and foreign countries in
which we operate. When economic activity increases, temporary employees are often added before full-time employees are hired. However, as economic activity
slows, many companies reduce their use of temporary employees before laying off full-time employees. In addition, Kelly may experience more competitive
pricing pressure during such periods of economic downturn. Therefore, any significant economic downturn could have a material adverse impact on Kelly’s
profitability.
 
Ability to Attract and Retain Qualified Candidates
 Kelly depends upon its ability to attract qualified temporary personnel who possess the skills and experience necessary to meet the staffing requirements of its
clients. Kelly must continually evaluate its base of available qualified personnel to keep pace with changing client needs. Competition for individuals with proven
professional skills is constant, and demand for such individuals is expected to remain very strong for the foreseeable future. There is always uncertainty whether
qualified personnel will continue to be available to Kelly in sufficient numbers and on terms of employment acceptable to Kelly.
 
Liabilities for Client and Employee Actions
 Temporary staffing services providers employ and assign people generally in the workplace of other businesses. Attendant risks of such activities include possible
claims of discrimination and harassment, employment of illegal aliens, violations of wage and hour requirements and errors and omissions of its temporary
employees, particularly for the actions of professionals (e.g., attorneys, accountants and scientists). Misuse of client proprietary information, misappropriation of
funds, other criminal activity and other similar claims are also attendant risks.
 
Kelly has policies and guidelines in place to help reduce its exposure to these risks and has purchased insurance policies against certain risks in amounts that it
believes to be adequate. Although Kelly historically has not had any material losses resulting from these risks, there can be no assurance that Kelly will not
experience such losses in the future or that Kelly’s insurance will remain available on reasonable terms or be sufficient in amount or scope to cover any such
liability.
 
Highly Dependent on Key Management
 Kelly is highly dependent on its management. Kelly believes that its success has depended to a significant extent upon the efforts and abilities of its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, Terence E. Adderley, and certain other key executives. The loss of the services of Mr. Adderley or any of the other key executives could
have a material adverse effect upon the Company.
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Government Regulations
 Government regulations may result in prohibition or restriction of certain types of employment services or the imposition of new or additional benefit, licensing
or tax requirements that may reduce Kelly’s future earnings. Such legislative or regulatory changes could include, among others, the prohibition or restriction of
certain types of employment services or the imposition of new or additional benefit, licensing or tax requirements with respect to the provision of employment
services. There can be no assurance that Kelly will be able to increase the fees charged to its clients in a timely manner and in a sufficient amount to cover
increased costs as a result of any of the foregoing.
 
Foreign Currency Fluctuations
 Kelly’s operations are conducted in 25 countries outside the U.S. and Kelly’s local operations are reported in the applicable foreign currencies and then translated
into U.S. dollars at the applicable foreign currency exchange rates for inclusion in Kelly’s consolidated financial statements. Exchange rates for currencies of
these countries may fluctuate in relation to the U.S. dollar and such fluctuations may have an adverse or favorable effect on Kelly’s operating results when
translating foreign currency into U.S. dollars.
 
Stock Price Fluctuations
 Our stock price can fluctuate as a result of a variety of factors, including factors listed in these “Risk Factors,” many of which are beyond our control. These
factors include actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results; announcements of new services by us or our competitors; announcements
relating to strategic relationships or acquisitions; changes in financial estimates by securities analysts; and changes in general economic conditions. Because of
this, we may fail to meet the expectations of our shareholders or of securities analysts, and our stock price could fluctuate as a result.
 
Concentration of Ownership
 Terence E. Adderley, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and certain trusts with respect to which he acts as trustee or co-trustee, control approximately
92.5% of our outstanding Class B common stock, our only class of stock entitled to voting rights. Mr. Adderley is therefore able to exercise voting control of the
Company with respect to matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions.
 

Access to Company Information
 
Kelly Services electronically files the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those
reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The public may read and copy any of the reports that are filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling
the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site (http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other
information regarding issuers that file electronically.
 
Kelly makes available, free of charge, through its website, and by responding to requests addressed to our director of investor relations, the annual report on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports. These reports are available as soon as reasonably
practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission. Kelly’s website address is:
“http://www.kellyservices.com”. The information contained on our website, or on other websites linked to our website, is not part of this document.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.
 Kelly Services owns its headquarters in Troy, Michigan, where corporate, subsidiary and divisional offices are currently located. We purchased the original
headquarters building in 1977 and have expanded our operations into additional buildings purchased in 1991, 1997 and 2001.
 
The combined usable floor space in our Troy complex is approximately 350,000 square feet, and an additional 63,000 square feet nearby is leased. Kelly’s
buildings are in good condition and are currently adequate for their intended purpose and use. Our company owns undeveloped land in Troy and Northern
Oakland County, Michigan, for possible future expansion.
 
Branch office business is conducted in leased premises and a majority of our leases are for fixed terms, generally five years in the U.S. and 5-10 years outside the
U.S. Kelly owns virtually all of its office furniture and the equipment used in corporate headquarters and branch offices.
 
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
 The Company is involved in various legal proceedings occurring in the normal course of its business. In the opinion of the Company’s management, adequate
provision has been made for losses that are likely to result from these proceedings.
 
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
 There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of 2003.
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PART II
 
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.
 Kelly’s stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market System (NMS). The high and low selling prices for the Class A common stock and Class B common
stock as quoted by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. and the dividends paid on the common stock for each quarterly period in the last two fiscal
years are reported below:
 

   

Per share amounts (in dollars)

   

First
Quarter

  

Second
Quarter

  

Third
Quarter

  

Fourth
Quarter

  

Year

2003                     
Class A common                     

High   $ 25.64  $ 25.90  $ 27.26  $ 29.70  $ 29.70
Low    19.01   21.31   23.30   24.20   19.01

Class B common                     
High    26.41   26.35   27.49   29.63   29.63
Low    19.68   21.87   24.04   25.75   19.68

Dividends    .10   .10   .10   .10   .40

2002                     
Class A common                     

High   $ 28.68  $ 29.50  $ 27.37  $ 25.75  $ 29.50
Low    21.33   23.60   19.80   17.86   17.86

Class B common                     
High    27.00   28.78   27.89   26.99   28.78
Low    21.00   23.50   20.50   18.90   18.90

Dividends    .10   .10   .10   .10   .40
 
The number of holders of record and individual participants of the Class A and Class B common stock of the Company were 5,330 and 548, respectively, as of
February 6, 2004.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
 The following table summarizes selected financial information of Kelly Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries for each of the most recent six fiscal years. This table
should be read in conjunction with other financial information of the registrant including “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and financial statements included elsewhere herein.
 
(In millions except per share amounts)

  

2003

  

2002

  

2001

  

2000

  

1999

  

1998 (1)

Revenue from services (2)   $ 4,325.2  $ 4,056.9  $ 4,005.9  $ 4,250.7  $ 4,076.3  $ 3,882.0
Earnings before taxes (3)    8.7   30.8   27.6   145.3   143.7   143.6
Net earnings    5.1   18.6   16.5   87.2   85.1   84.7

Per share data:                         
Basic earnings per share    0.14   0.52   0.46   2.44   2.37   2.24
Diluted earnings per share    0.14   0.52   0.46   2.43   2.36   2.23

Dividends per share                         
Classes A and B common    0.40   0.40   0.85   0.99   0.95   0.91

Working capital    374.4   352.2   322.0   336.2   344.7   346.8
Total assets    1,137.7   1,072.1   1,039.4   1,089.6   1,033.7   964.2

(1)  Fiscal year included 53 weeks.
(2)  As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, beginning in 2003, the Company changed its method of reporting revenue for its Kelly Staff Leasing

subsidiary. As a result, KSL worksite employee payroll costs were excluded from both revenue from services and cost of services, with no impact on gross
profit or net earnings. Revenue from services and cost of services were reclassified for all prior periods for comparability. The effect of this change was to
reduce revenue from services and cost of services as follows: $266.5 million in 2002, $251.0 million in 2001, $236.6 million in 2000, $192.8 million in
1999 and $210.2 million in 1998.

(3)  As discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, the Company eliminated goodwill amortization beginning in 2002. Goodwill amortization included in
earnings before taxes was $2.7 million in 2001, $2.0 million in 2000, $1.8 million in 1999 and $1.5 million in 1998, respectively.

 
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
 

Executive Overview
 
We view 2003 as a transitional year for the economy and the staffing industry. The first half of the year was marked by sporadic economic improvement and a
weak labor market. It wasn’t until late in the year that global economic conditions began to improve and signaled a sustainable job-creating recovery. Concurrent
with this, the demand for temporary staffing also began to show real strength. In 2003, our revenues increased to $4.325 billion. This was a new record and was
almost $75 million above the previous record set in the year 2000.
 
While sales recovered strongly, earnings declined to less than 10% of their pre-recession levels. This was anticipated by management and reflected in our
quarterly guidance last year. As we have previously stated, we are committed to exceeding our historic earnings levels. Clearly, recessions aren’t good for the
staffing industry, so we welcome this recovery.
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Historically, during the early stages of a recovery, companies are uncertain if the improvement in their business will continue. Rather than hiring full-time
employees, they tend to add temporary staff. Typically, during this early period of the recovery, our sales grow at an accelerated rate. When companies become
confident that the recovery is “for real” they will begin adding to their permanent workforce. At that point, our sales continue to increase but at a more normal
rate. It is also at this time that we would expect to see temporary-to-permanent conversions fees and placement fees begin to accelerate.
 
Another historic expectation when coming out of a recession is a significant increase in workers’ compensation costs and state unemployment taxes. The
increases we experienced in 2003 and the anticipated increases in state unemployment taxes for 2004 have been particularly large. However, these increases
should have only a short-term effect on our earnings.
 
The staffing industry has always been difficult to forecast. The duration and strength of economic recoveries will vary which, in turn, impacts our growth rates.
Also, during the last decade, we have seen many fundamental changes in the business, which may also affect growth rates. For example:
 •  Temporaries are a larger part of the workforce. Over the last decade, temporary employees in the U.S., as a percent of the workforce, grew from 1.3% to

2.3%. Since the recession began, that percentage has declined back to 1.8% but we expect it to rebound quickly.
 •  There has been more widespread acceptance and growth of the professional and technical staffing areas.
 •  Recruitment fees have become more important as more companies use temporary-to-permanent as a preferred hiring model.
 •  In the case of Kelly, our mix of businesses and geographic coverage are very different than they were ten years ago.
 
The pattern of recovery for our industry is yet to be determined and comparisons to the past may be of limited use. However, in any event, we believe the future
should be very positive for Kelly Services.
 

Results of Operations
2003 versus 2002

 
Revenue from services for 2003 totaled $4.325 billion, an increase of 6.6% from the same period in the prior year. This was the result of an increase in hours
worked of 4.3% and an increase in average hourly bill rates of 1.9%. Revenue from services increased in each of the Company’s three business segments: U.S.
Commercial Staffing, PTSA and International. During the past year, the U.S. dollar declined in comparison to many foreign currencies, including the euro and
British pound. As a result, Kelly’s U.S. dollar translated revenue from services was higher than would have otherwise been reported. On a constant currency
basis, 2003 revenue from services increased 3.3% as compared with the prior year. Management believes constant currency measurements are an important
analytical tool to aid in understanding underlying operating trends without distortion due to currency fluctuations. The table below summarizes the impact of
foreign exchange adjustments on revenue from services for 2003:
 

   

Revenue from Services

 

   

2003

  

2002

  

% Change

 
   (In millions of dollars)     
U.S. Commercial Staffing   $ 2,131.5  $ 2,104.6  1.3%
PTSA    895.0   870.4  2.8 
International—Constant Currency    1,164.8   1,082.0  7.7 
       

Revenue from Services—Constant Currency    4,191.4   4,056.9  3.3 
Foreign Currency Impact    133.8   —      

       
Revenue from Services   $ 4,325.2  $ 4,056.9  6.6%

       
 
Gross profit of $696.6 million was 0.6% higher than 2002. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues was 16.1% in 2003, which decreased 1.0 percentage point
compared to the 17.1% rate recorded in the prior year. This reflected decreases in the gross profit rates of all three business segments. The decrease in the gross
profit rate was primarily due to higher workers’ compensation costs and, to the extent not recovered through pricing actions, higher payroll taxes.
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During 2003, primarily as a result of higher than expected medical inflation rates, the Company revised its estimate of the cost of outstanding workers’
compensation claims and, accordingly, recorded additional expense of $11.7 million. Workers’ compensation costs, excluding the impact of the revision of the
estimate of outstanding claims, are expected to remain at the current level for 2004. Payroll taxes, which included a favorable resolution related to federal payroll
tax claims, are expected to increase as a result of continuing increases in state unemployment taxes. Kelly is attempting to recover these additional costs by re-
pricing customer contracts.
 
Selling, general and administrative expenses of $687.9 million were 3.9% higher than last year. Selling, general and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of revenues were 15.9% in 2003, a 0.4 percentage point decrease compared to the 16.3% rate in 2002. As measured on a constant currency basis,
selling, general and administrative expenses increased 0.1% compared to the prior year. Higher marketing expenses and costs associated with the implementation
of Kelly StaffNet, the Company’s new branch automation system, have been offset by lower incentive-based compensation and retirement program costs. In
addition, 2002 expenses included additional costs related to the Company’s information technology programs and a loss related to the Company’s equity
investment in itiliti, an internet-based vendor management software provider.
 
Net interest expense for 2003 was $77 thousand, compared to net interest income of $362 thousand in 2002. The change is primarily attributable to lower cash
balances and lower interest rates earned on the cash balances.
 
Earnings before taxes were $8.7 million, a decrease of 71.8% from 2002. Earnings before taxes averaged 0.2% of revenues in 2003 and 0.8% of revenues in 2002.
The effective income tax rate for 2003 was 41.0%, a small increase from last year’s rate of 39.6%. The net increase is attributable to valuation allowances
established for certain international tax loss carryforwards, partially offset by the favorable settlement of prior years’ tax audits. The Company expects its
effective tax rate to average approximately 40.0% in 2004.
 
Net earnings were $5.1 million, or a 72.5% decrease compared to 2002. Basic and diluted earnings per share were $0.14, a decrease of 73.1% as compared to
basic and diluted earnings per share of $0.52 in 2002.
 
U.S. Commercial Staffing
 Revenue from services in the U.S. Commercial Staffing segment totaled $2.132 billion in 2003, a 1.3% increase compared to the $2.105 billion reported for the
same period in 2002. This reflected a 0.5% increase in hours worked and a 0.8% increase in average hourly bill rates. Year-over-year revenue comparisons were:
up 4.9% in the first quarter, down 0.7% in the second quarter, down 2.6% in the third quarter and up 4.0% in the fourth quarter. Year- over-year revenue growth
strengthened month by month over the course of the fourth quarter.
 
U.S. Commercial Staffing revenue from services represented 49% of total Company revenue from services for 2003 and 52% for 2002.
 
U.S. Commercial Staffing earnings from operations totaled $92.9 million for 2003 compared to earnings of $118.7 million last year, a decrease of 21.7%. The
decrease in earnings from operations was primarily attributable to a 1.4 percentage point decrease in the gross profit rate partially offset by the 1.3% increase in
revenue. The decrease in the gross profit rate was primarily the result of higher workers’ compensation costs. As noted above, the Company revised its estimate
of the cost of outstanding workers compensation claims and, accordingly, recorded additional expense in 2003. Of the total $11.7 million additional workers’
compensation expense, $9.7 million was charged to U.S. Commercial Staffing. Higher state unemployment taxes, to the extent not recovered through pricing
actions and, to a lesser extent, shifts in customer and service line mix to lower gross profit business also reduced the segment gross profit rate.
 
Many of the Company’s large corporate and national account customers have negotiated high volume global service agreements, which tend to result in lower
gross profit rates than those earned with the Company’s small and medium size customers. The Company’s strategy is focused on serving and growing these large
corporate national accounts. As customer mix shifts to large corporate and national accounts, the Company’s average gross margins tend to decrease. The
Company expects this trend to continue in 2004.
 
The Company has also experienced a shift in its mix of business from the office/clerical to light industrial service lines. Because light industrial business typically
generates lower gross profit rates than office/clerical staffing, this mix shift has also tended to reduce the Company’s average gross profit rates. The Company
believes this shift in business mix is, in large part, related to the current economic environment and expects this shift in business mix to reverse when the
economy fully recovers.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by 0.8% as compared to the prior year and, as a percentage of revenues, were 10.1% for both 2003 and
2002. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was due primarily to the impact of the Company’s ongoing deployment of new front office
systems in part offset by lower field bonus costs and decreases in the cost of retirement programs.
 
Professional, Technical and Staffing Alternatives
 Revenue from services in the PTSA segment for 2003 totaled $895.0 million, an increase of 2.8% compared to the $870.4 million reported in 2002. This reflected
a 2.2% increase in average hourly bill rates, partially offset by a 1.6% decrease in hours worked in the professional and technical businesses. Revenues in the
staffing alternatives businesses, which include staff leasing, management services, HRfirst and vendor management services, increased by 9.8% compared to
2002. PTSA revenues from services represented 21% of total Company revenues in both 2003 and 2002.
 
Effective with the first quarter of 2003, the Company changed its method of reporting revenue for Kelly Staff Leasing (“KSL”), a wholly owned subsidiary. KSL
is a Professional Employer Organization (“PEO”) and is part of the PTSA segment. Consistent with changing PEO industry practice, KSL changed from the gross
method of reporting revenue to the net method under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an
Agent.” As a result, KSL no longer included worksite employee payroll costs in revenue from services or cost of services. This change did not impact gross profit
or net earnings. Revenue from services and cost of services have been reclassified for all prior periods for comparability. The effect of this change on prior
periods was to reduce revenue from services and cost of services for 2002 and 2001 by $266.5 million and $251.0 million, respectively. Revenue from services
and cost of services adjustments for the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2002 were $63.4 million, $62.1 million, $65.4 million, and $75.6 million,
respectively.
 
Results varied among the 14 business units that comprise PTSA. During 2003, Kelly Financial Resources, Kelly Law Registry, Kelly HR First, Kelly
Management Services and Kelly Vendor Management all exhibited double digit sales growth as compared to 2002. Kelly Healthcare, Kelly Staff Leasing, Kelly
Information Technology Resources and Kelly Automotive Services Group also maintained positive revenue growth. However, three large PTSA units, Kelly
Scientific Resources, Kelly Home Care and Kelly Engineering Resources, experienced revenue declines during 2003 as compared to the prior year. These
decreases, however, were consistent with industry trends in their staffing sectors.
 
PTSA earnings from operations for 2003 totaled $53.0 million and increased 4.0% from the same period in 2002. This was the result of the 2.8% increase in
revenue from services partially offset by a 0.2 percentage point decrease in the gross profit rate and a 0.8% increase in expenses. The decrease in the gross profit
rate was primarily the result of higher workers’ compensation costs. PTSA was also impacted by higher workers’ compensation expense, primarily due to Kelly
Staff Leasing. PTSA’s share of the total $11.7 million additional charge for workers’ compensation was $2.0 million. Selling, general and administrative expenses
as a percent of revenues were 12.2% for 2003 and 12.5% for 2002.
 
International
 Translated U.S. dollar revenue from services in the International segment for 2003 totaled $1.299 billion, a 20.0% increase compared to the $1.082 billion
reported for 2002. This resulted from an increase in hours worked of 12.3% and a 7.2% increase in the translated U.S. dollar average hourly bill rates.
International revenue from services represented 30% of total Company revenues in 2003 and 27% in 2002.
 
On a constant currency basis, revenue from services increased 7.7% and average hourly bill rates decreased 3.9%. The year-over-year decrease in average hourly
bill rates, on a constant currency basis, is due primarily to a shift in mix of hours worked to countries such as Mexico, Russia and Malaysia, which typically have
a lower average bill rate.
 
The strong improvements realized in revenue were caused by both a general economic recovery in most countries, and Kelly’s particular focus on sales growth.
Fourth quarter sales growth was positive in all regions: UK/Ireland, the Americas, Asia-Pacific and continental Europe.
 
In our U.K./Ireland operations, sales accelerated significantly during the second half of the year and revenues for the fourth quarter increased 30% year over year.
The UK economy is now beginning to experience signs of a turnaround. The increase in revenue is primarily due to new staffing accounts added throughout the
year. In addition, our fee-based recruiting businesses showed encouraging signs of improvement during the fourth quarter with year-over-year growth of 20%.
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During the fourth quarter, consistent with the third quarter, revenue grew by 11% in the Americas as compared with 2002. However, unlike the third quarter
where growth was primarily fueled by Mexico, the fourth quarter saw stronger revenue growth in Canada and Puerto Rico as well.
 
The Asia-Pacific growth was generated by our operations in Australia, New Zealand, Singapore, and Malaysia. After experiencing strong revenue growth in the
third quarter, revenue grew by 21% year over year in the fourth quarter.
 
We also saw encouraging year-over-year revenue growth in continental Europe during the second half of the year. Revenue in continental Europe turned positive
in the third quarter and increased nearly 10% in the fourth quarter. The majority of the countries in which we operate, such as Spain, Russia, Norway,
Luxembourg and Holland, experienced solid revenue increases, while Germany continued to post revenue declines. Although our temporary staffing business is
recovering in continental Europe, our fee-based income continues to lag, as our recruiting business has been hit the hardest in this region. As economic conditions
continue to improve, we expect fee-based income to begin to recover.
 
International reported a loss of $1.0 million for 2003, compared to earnings of $4.9 million for 2002. The 20.0% increase in revenue from services was more than
offset by a 1.2 percentage point decrease in the gross profit rate and a 15.7% increase in expenses, as measured in U.S. dollars. International results continued to
improve as the year progressed. The segment recorded a loss of $3.2 million in the first quarter, a loss of $1.0 million in the second quarter and income of $1.6
million in each of the third and fourth quarters.
 
The decrease in the International gross profit rate is due to rate decreases in the United Kingdom and France, as well as the effect of lower fee-based income on a
constant currency basis. The increase in U.S. dollar reported expenses is due primarily to the effect of currency rates. On a constant currency basis, expenses
increased by 3.0%.
 

Results of Operations
2002 versus 2001

 
Revenue from services for 2002 totaled $4.057 billion, an increase of 1.3% compared to the $4.006 billion reported in 2001. The increase was primarily the result
of an increase in average hourly bill rates of 1.4%. Hours worked were essentially unchanged year over year. Revenue increases in the U.S. Commercial Staffing
and Professional, Technical and Staffing Alternatives (PTSA) segments were partially offset by a slight revenue decrease in the International segment. On a
constant currency basis, revenues for 2002 increased 0.4% as compared to 2001. The table below summarizes the impact of foreign exchange adjustments on
2002 revenue from services:
 

   

Revenue from Services

 

   

2002

  

2001

  

% Change

 
   (In millions of dollars)     
U.S. Commercial Staffing   $ 2,104.6  $ 2,094.8  0.5%
PTSA    870.4   824.1  5.6 
International—Constant Currency    1,045.2   1,087.0  (3.8)
       

Revenue from Services—Constant Currency    4,020.2   4,005.9  0.4 
Foreign Currency Impact    36.8   —      

       
Revenue from Services   $ 4,056.9  $ 4,005.9  1.3%

       
 
Gross profit of $692.7 million was 0.7% lower than the gross profit of $697.9 million in 2001. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues was 17.1% in 2002, a
decrease of 0.3 percentage point compared to the 17.4% rate recorded in 2001. Gross profit rates of the PTSA and International segments declined while U.S.
Commercial Staffing remained relatively unchanged. The decline in gross profit rates was due primarily to a continuing shift in the mix of customers to large
corporate and national accounts and a decline in recruitment fee income.
 
Selling, general and administrative expenses of $662.3 million were 1.1% lower than 2001. The expense rate improved to 16.3% of revenues in 2002 as compared
to 16.7% in 2001. The decrease was due primarily to staff reductions and lower telecommunication and recruiting costs, which were the result of expense
reduction initiatives the Company implemented during 2001, and the elimination of goodwill amortization (see discussion to follow in “Critical Accounting
Estimates”).
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The staff reductions in both field operations and headquarters units generated savings of approximately $6 million in 2002 as compared with 2001. The Company
did not incur significant termination costs as a result of these staff reductions. The majority of the staff reductions took place during the second and third quarters
of 2001. These savings were partially offset by field and headquarters bonus payments, which increased due to the Company’s improved performance, the effect
of currency rates on international expenses and increased depreciation expense as a result of the Company’s ongoing deployment of information technology
programs.
 
Earnings from operations in 2002 totaled $30.4 million, an 8.7% increase compared to the $28.0 million reported for 2001. The increase in earnings from
operations was the result of many factors discussed above, including the elimination of goodwill amortization of $2.7 million. Earnings were 0.7% of sales for
both 2002 and 2001.
 
Net interest income for 2002 was $362 thousand, a $743 thousand improvement compared to net interest expense of $381 thousand in 2001. The improvement is
primarily attributable to higher cash balances and lower short-term debt levels, offset by the impact of lower interest rates.
 
Earnings before taxes were $30.8 million, an increase of 11.5% from 2001. Earnings before taxes averaged 0.8% of revenues in 2002 and 0.7% of revenues in
2001. The effective income tax rate in 2002 was 39.6%, a 0.4 percentage point improvement compared with the 40.0% rate in 2001. The decrease in the overall
income tax rate was the result of several factors including the favorable settlement of prior years’ tax audits, offset by an increase in valuation reserves related to
the Company’s ability to utilize foreign net operating loss carryforwards.
 
Net earnings were $18.6 million in 2002, a 12.2% increase compared to the $16.5 million earned in 2001. Basic and diluted earnings per share were $0.52, an
increase of 13.0% as compared to basic and diluted earnings per share of $0.46 in 2001.
 
U.S. Commercial Staffing
 Revenue from services in the U.S. Commercial Staffing segment, which represented 52% of total Company revenues in 2002 and 2001, totaled $2.105 billion in
2002, a 0.5% increase compared to the $2.095 billion reported for 2001. The increase was primarily the result of an increase in average hourly bill rates of 0.6%,
offset by a 0.1% decrease in hours worked. Year-over-year revenue comparisons were: down 12.3% in the first quarter, flat in the second quarter, up 6.7% in the
third quarter and up 8.9% in the fourth quarter. Revenue trends were relatively stable month by month over the course of the fourth quarter in 2002.
 
U.S. Commercial Staffing earnings totaled $118.7 million, an increase of 3.5% in 2002, as a result of the 0.5% revenue increase, relatively stable gross profit rates
and a 1.8% decrease in expenses. The gross profit rate averaged 15.8% in both 2002 and 2001. Improvements in benefit costs were offset by the impact of an
ongoing shift in mix of revenues to larger corporate and national accounts. Year-over-year gross profit rate comparisons for U.S. Commercial Staffing were down
in the first and second quarters and up in the third and fourth quarters. The increase in gross profit rate in the second half of 2002 reflected improvement in
benefits costs relative to last year and increased fee-based income in the fourth quarter.
 
U.S. Commercial Staffing expenses were tightly controlled and decreased 1.8% year-over-year primarily due to staff reductions and lower recruiting costs,
partially offset by higher field bonus payouts and the impact of the Company’s ongoing deployment of new front office systems.
 
Professional, Technical and Staffing Alternatives
 Revenue from services in the PTSA segment totaled $870.4 million, an increase of 5.6% compared to the $824.1 million reported in 2001. The growth is due to
an increase in average hourly bill rates of 4.8%, partially offset by a decrease in hours worked of 0.1% in the professional and technical businesses. In addition,
there was an increase in revenues of 11.9% in the staffing alternatives businesses. PTSA revenue from services represented 21% of total Company revenues in
2002 and 2001.
 
During 2002, Kelly Healthcare Resources and Kelly Financial Resources continued to be the leading performers, exhibiting revenue growth of over 25% as
compared to 2001. Kelly Staff Leasing, Kelly Engineering Resources, Kelly IT Resources, Kelly Management Services and Kelly Law Registry also maintained
positive revenue growth in 2002. Kelly Automotive Services Group posted positive growth in the second half of the year, resulting in a slight overall increase
year over year. However, Kelly Home Care Services experienced a significant revenue decline during 2002 as compared to 2001. This decrease, however, was
consistent with industry trends in its staffing sector.
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PTSA earnings from operations totaled $51.0 million in 2002, an increase of 6.2% from 2001. This was the result of the 5.6% increase in revenue from services,
partially offset by a 0.6 percentage point decrease in the gross profit rate and the effect of holding expenses to a 1.1% increase.
 
The decrease in the gross profit rate was due to changes in business unit mix and rate decreases in certain business units, such as Kelly Automotive Services
Group and Kelly IT Resources. The most significant factor impacting the business unit mix was the decline in revenues at the Kelly Home Care Services unit,
which has a higher than average gross profit rate. These declines were partially offset by a 20.8% year-over-year increase in PTSA fee-based income.
 
PTSA expenses increased 1.1% from 2001, due to higher field bonus payouts, the impact of the Company’s ongoing deployment of new front office systems,
higher liability insurance costs and increased facilities expense associated with the expansion of Kelly Financial Resources and Kelly Healthcare Resources. This
was partially offset by the elimination of goodwill amortization and lower recruiting costs. Expenses as a percent of revenues decreased to 12.5% in 2002 from
13.0% in 2001.
 
International
 Translated U.S. dollar revenue from services in International totaled $1.082 billion, a 0.5% decrease compared to the $1.087 billion reported in 2001. This
decrease resulted primarily from a 19% decrease in recruitment fees and a 0.4% decrease in hours worked. U.S. dollar-average bill rates were essentially
unchanged year over year. International revenue from services represented 27% of total Company revenues in 2002 and 2001.
 
The Americas and Asia-Pacific, the first regions within the International segment to reflect the negative impact of the global economic slowdown, continued to
show improvement. Year-over-year revenue comparisons in continental Europe and the United Kingdom remained negative throughout 2002.
 
During 2002, the U.S. dollar continued to fall in comparison to many foreign currencies, including the Euro and British pound. As a result, Kelly’s U.S. dollar
translated revenues and expenses were higher than would have otherwise been reported. On a constant currency basis, international revenue decreased 3.8%. This
compared to 2.5% overall constant currency revenue growth in 2001. Year-over-year constant currency revenue from services declined 6.4% in the first quarter,
2.4% in the second quarter, 4.3% in the third quarter and 2.2% in the fourth quarter.
 
International earnings totaled $4.9 million, a decrease of 46.0% from 2001, resulting from the 0.5% decrease in revenue from services and a 0.8 percentage point
decline in the gross profit rate, partially offset by a 2.6% reduction in expenses.
 
The decline in the gross profit rate was primarily due to the 19% decrease in recruitment fee income, with the most significant decrease occurring in the United
Kingdom. On a year-over-year basis, translated U.S. dollar expenses in the International segment decreased 2.6%, primarily due to lower wages and recruiting
costs and the elimination of goodwill amortization. On a constant currency basis, expenses decreased 6.5%.
 

Financial Condition
 
Historically, Kelly has financed its operations through cash generated by operating activities and available from revolving credit facilities. As highlighted in the
Statements of Cash Flows, the Company’s liquidity and available capital resources are impacted by four key components: cash and equivalents, operating
activities, investing activities and financing activities.
 
Cash and Equivalents
 Cash and equivalents totaled $76 million at the end of 2003, a decrease of $25 million from the $101 million at year-end 2002 and a decrease of $7 million from
the $83 million at year-end 2001. As further described below, during 2003 the Company generated $31 million of cash from operating activities and used $33
million of cash in investing activities and $26 million in financing activities.
 
Operating Activities
 In 2003, the Company generated $31 million in cash in its operating activities, as compared to $90 million in 2002 and $145 million in 2001. The most significant
reason for the decrease in cash generated from operations was that accounts receivable grew at a faster rate in 2003 versus 2002 and 2001.
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Accounts receivable totaled $658 million at the end of 2003. Global days sales outstanding at the end of 2003 were 51 days, which is an increase of 2 days as
compared with the prior year. If the economy continues to recover in 2004, the Company expects to experience further growth in revenue, which may require the
Company to fund additional increases in accounts receivable.
 
The Company’s working capital position was $374 million at the end of 2003, an increase of $22 million from year-end 2002 and an increase of $52 million from
2001. The current ratio was 1.9 at the end of 2003, as compared with 2.0 at year-end 2002 and 1.9 at year-end 2001.
 
Investing Activities
 In 2003, the Company used $33 million for investing activities compared to $37 million in 2002 and $49 million in 2001. Capital expenditures for 2003 totaled
$30 million, down 10% from the $33 million spent in 2002 and down almost 30% from the $43 million spent in 2001. Capital expenditures for 2003 are primarily
related to the Company’s information technology programs. Capital spending in 2004 is expected to total between $30 and $34 million.
 
During the first quarter of 2001, the Company acquired a fully leased commercial office building that will be used for future expansion. This transaction was the
second leg of a tax-free exchange for undeveloped land the Company initiated in the fourth quarter of 2000. The land was effectively swapped for the building,
but in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, it was shown as a cash acquisition for $11.8 million during 2001. The related $10.3 million cash
proceeds from the sale of property was reflected in the 2000 cash from investing activities.
 
Financing Activities
 In 2003, the Company used $26 million in financing activities, as compared to $38 million in 2002 and $55 million in 2001. In 2003, the Company used $26
million to repurchase stock as compared to $13 million in 2002. However, this was offset by additional short-term borrowings of $10 million in 2003, as
compared to repayments of $12 million in 2002 and $25 million in 2001.
 
In September 2003, the Company repurchased 1,000,000 shares of Class A common stock in a negotiated transaction from the William R. Kelly Trust. The total
value of the share repurchase was $26 million or $26.04 per share, representing a 2.7% discount to the closing market price of Kelly Class A common stock on
the business day prior to the purchase. In July 2002, the Company repurchased 500,000 shares of Class A common stock from the William R. Kelly Trust. The
total value of the share repurchase was $13 million or $26.28 per share, representing a 2.7% discount to the closing market price of Kelly Class A common stock
on the business day prior to the purchase. These repurchase transactions were reflected in the Company’s third quarter financial statements for 2003 and 2002.
 
Short-term debt totaled $39 million at year-end 2003, compared to $25 million at year-end 2002 and $33 million at year-end 2001. At the end of 2003, debt
represented approximately 6% of total capital.
 
As of year-end 2003, the Company had $87 million of committed unused credit facilities. In June, 2003, the Company entered into a new $125 million three-year,
unsecured multi-currency revolving credit facility to replace its existing $100 million revolving credit facility which was scheduled to expire in October, 2003.
The credit facility will be used to fund working capital, acquisitions and for general corporate purposes. The interest rate applicable to borrowings under the new
facility is 60 basis points over local LIBOR. At year-end 2003, the Company had additional uncommitted one-year credit facilities totaling $30 million, under
which the Company had borrowed $1.5 million dollars.
 
The Company intends to continue its expansion program, adding one or two new countries or service lines each year by organic growth and small strategic
acquisitions. Targeted countries/areas include, Japan, Eastern Europe and South America.
 
Dividends paid per common share were $.40 in 2003 and 2002, a decrease of 52.9% from 2001 dividends of $.85 per share. The dividend was reduced in the
fourth quarter of 2001 to a new rate of $.10 per share per quarter, or $.40 per share annually. Annual cash savings from this reduction are over $21 million per
year.
 
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
 Summarized below are the Company’s obligations and commitments to make future payments under lease agreements and debt obligations as of year-end 2003:
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Total

  

Less than
1 year

  

1-3 Years

  

3-5 Years

  

More than
5 years

Operating leases   $ 148,500  $ 41,700  $ 59,600  $ 31,200  $ 16,000
Short-term borrowings    39,200   39,200   —     —     —  
           
Total   $ 187,700  $ 80,900  $ 59,600  $ 31,200  $ 16,000

           
 
The Company has no material, unrecorded commitments, losses, contingencies or guarantees associated with any related parties or unconsolidated entities.
 
Summary
 The Company’s financial position remains strong. The Company continues to carry no long-term debt and expects to meet its cash requirements, including
possible increases in accounts receivable as discussed above, principally through cash generated from operations, available cash and equivalents and committed
unused credit facilities.
 

Market Risk-Sensitive Instruments and Positions
 
Kelly does not hold or invest in derivative contracts. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily due to its net investment in foreign subsidiaries,
which conduct business in their local currencies. These risks are mitigated by the use of the Company’s multi-currency line of credit. This credit facility is used to
borrow in local currencies, which mitigates the exchange rate risk resulting from foreign currency-denominated net investments fluctuating in relation to the U.S.
dollar.
 
In addition, the Company is exposed to interest rate risks through its use of the multi-currency line of credit.
 
The Company is exposed to market risk as a result of its obligation to pay benefits under its nonqualified deferred compensation plan and its related investments
in company-owned variable universal life insurance policies. The obligation to employees increases and decreases based on movements in the equity and debt
markets. The investments in publicly traded mutual funds, as part of the company-owned variable universal life insurance policies, are designed to mitigate this
risk with offsetting gains and losses.
 
Overall, the Company’s holdings and positions in market risk-sensitive instruments do not subject the Company to material risk.
 

Critical Accounting Estimates
 
The Company prepares its financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In this process, it is
necessary for management to make certain assumptions and related estimates affecting the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and the
attached notes. Actual results can differ from assumed and estimated amounts.
 
Critical accounting estimates are those that management believes require the most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make
estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of those estimates may result in materially different
amounts being reported under different conditions or using different assumptions. The Company considers the following estimates to be most critical in
understanding the judgments involved in preparing its consolidated financial statements.
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Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable
 We make ongoing estimates relating to the collectibility of our accounts receivable and maintain an allowance for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
our customers to make required payments. In determining the amount of the allowance, we consider our historical level of credit losses and apply percentages to
certain aged receivable categories. We also make judgments about the creditworthiness of significant customers based on ongoing credit evaluations, and we
monitor current economic trends that might impact the level of credit losses in the future. Historically, losses from uncollectible accounts have not exceeded our
allowance. Since we cannot predict with certainty future changes in the financial stability of our customers, actual future losses from uncollectible accounts may
differ from our estimates. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in their inability to make payments, a larger allowance may be
required. In the event we determined that a smaller or larger allowance was appropriate, we would record a credit or a charge to selling, general and
administrative expense in the period in which we made such a determination. As of year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, the allowance for uncollectible accounts
receivable was $15.0 million, $12.5 million and $12.1 million, respectively.
 
Workers’ Compensation
 The Company has a combination of insurance and self-insurance contracts under which the Company effectively bears the first $500,000 of risk per single
accident. The Company establishes accruals for workers’ compensation utilizing actuarial methods to estimate the undiscounted future cash payments that will be
made to satisfy the claims, including an allowance for incurred-but-not-reported claims. This process includes establishing loss development factors, based on the
historical claims experience of the Company and the industry, and applying those factors to current claims information to derive an estimate of the Company’s
ultimate claims liability. In preparing the estimates, we also consider the nature and severity of the claims, analyses provided by third party claims administrators,
as well as current legal, economic and regulatory factors.
 
Management evaluates the accrual, and the underlying assumptions, regularly throughout the year and makes adjustments as needed. The ultimate cost of these
claims may be greater than or less than the established accrual. While management believes that the recorded amounts are adequate, there can be no assurances
that changes to management’s estimates will not occur due to limitations inherent in the estimation process. In the event we determine that a smaller or larger
accrual is appropriate, we would record a credit or a charge to cost of services in the period in which we made such a determination. The accrual for workers’
compensation was $94.8 million, $73.5 million and $63.3 million at year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
 
Goodwill
 Effective December 31, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS
142”), which established a new method of testing goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment using a fair-value based approach. Under the new standard,
goodwill is no longer amortized as was previously required. Upon adoption, amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets ceased. Amortization of
goodwill would have been $2.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2002.
 
SFAS 142 requires that goodwill be tested for impairment annually or if an event occurs or circumstances change that may reduce the fair value of the reporting
unit below its book value. Should circumstances change or events occur to indicate that the fair market value of the reporting unit has fallen below its book value,
management must then compare the estimated fair value of goodwill to book value. If the book value exceeds the estimated fair value, an impairment loss would
be recognized in an amount equal to that excess. Such an impairment loss would be recognized as a non-cash charge to operating income.
 
We completed our impairment test as of the date of adoption, December 31, 2001 and during the fourth quarter of the years ended December 29, 2002 and
December 28, 2003, as required under SFAS 142 and determined that goodwill is not impaired. This test required comparison of our estimated fair value to our
book value of goodwill. The estimated fair value was based on a discounted cash flows analysis. Assumptions and estimates about future cash flows and discount
rates are complex and often subjective. They can be affected by a variety of factors, including external factors such as industry and economic trends, and internal
factors such as changes in our business strategy and our internal forecasts.
 
Although we believe the assumptions and estimates we have made are reasonable and appropriate, different assumptions and estimates could materially impact
our reported financial results. Different assumptions of the anticipated future benefits from these businesses could result in an impairment charge, which would
decrease operating income and result in lower asset values on our balance sheet. At year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, total goodwill amounted to $85.8 million,
$80.3 million and $73.6 million, respectively.
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Income Taxes
 Income tax expense is based on expected income and statutory tax rates in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Judgment is required in determining our
income tax expense. We establish accruals when, despite our belief that reported taxable income is fully supportable, we believe that challenges are likely and that
we may not succeed. We adjust these accruals in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the progress of a tax audit. Our effective tax rate includes the
impact of accrual provisions and changes to accruals that we consider appropriate, as well as related interest. This rate is then applied to our quarterly operating
results. In the event that there is a significant unusual or one-time item recognized in our operating results, the tax attributable to that item would be separately
calculated and recorded at the same time as the unusual or one-time item.
 
Tax laws require items to be included in the tax return at different times than the items are reflected in the financial statements. As a result, the income tax
expense reflected in our financial statements is different than the liability reported in our tax return. Some of these differences are permanent, such as expenses
which are not deductible on our tax return, and some are temporary differences, such as depreciation expense. Temporary differences create deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax assets generally represent items that can be used as a tax deduction or credit in our tax return in future years for which we have
already recorded the tax benefit in our income statement. We establish valuation allowances for our deferred tax assets when the amount of expected future
taxable income is not likely to support the use of the deduction or credit. Deferred tax liabilities generally represent items for which we have already taken a
deduction on our tax return, but have not yet recognized as expense in our financial statements.
 
A number of years may elapse before a particular matter, for which we have established an accrual, is audited and finally resolved. While it is often difficult to
predict the final outcome or the timing of resolution of any particular tax matter, we believe that our accruals reflect the probable outcome of tax contingencies.
Favorable or unfavorable settlement of any particular issue would be recognized as an increase or decrease to our income tax expense in the year of resolution.
Our tax accruals are presented in the balance sheet within income and other taxes.
 

New Accounting Pronouncements
 
In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (FIN 46) which
requires the consolidation of variable interest entities, as defined. FIN 46 is applicable to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. Variable interest
entities created prior to February 1, 2003, must be consolidated effective December 31, 2003. Disclosures are required currently if the Company expects to
consolidate any variable interest entities. In December 2003, the FASB redeliberated certain proposed modifications and revised FIN 46 (“FIN 46 (R)”). The
revised provisions are applicable no later than the first reporting period ending after March 15, 2004. The Company does not have any variable interest entities;
therefore FIN 46 and FIN 46 (R) will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.
 
In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 149”). SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”). SFAS 149 is
generally effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The Company does not
have any derivative instruments; therefore SFAS 149 will not have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.
 
In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No.150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS 150”).
SFAS 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures three classes of freestanding financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities
and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). SFAS 150 was
effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003. The Company has not entered into any financial instruments within the scope of SFAS 150 since May 31, 2003, nor does it currently hold any
financial instruments within its scope.
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In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to SFAS No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures About Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits,” (“SFAS 132”)
which revises employers’ disclosures about pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans. It requires disclosures in addition to those in the original SFAS
No. 132 about the assets, obligations, cash flows and net periodic benefit cost of defined pension plans and other defined benefit postretirement plans. The
Company does not offer a defined benefit pension plan or other defined benefit postretirement plans within the scope of the revised SFAS No. 132.
 

Forward-Looking Statements
 
Certain statements contained in this document are “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the
“Act”). Forward-looking statements include statements which are predictive in nature; which depend upon or refer to future events or conditions; or which
include words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates,” or variations or negatives thereof or by similar or comparable words
or phrases. In addition, any statements concerning future financial performance (including future revenues, earnings or growth rates), ongoing business strategies
or prospects, and possible future Company actions that may be provided by management are also forward-looking statements as defined by the Act. Forward-
looking statements are based on current expectations and projections about future events and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions about the
Company; and economic and market factors in the countries in which the Company does business, among other things. These statements are not guarantees of
future performance, and the Company has no specific intention to update these statements.
 
Actual events and results may differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in forward-looking statements due to a number of factors. The principal
important risk factors that could cause the Company’s actual performance and future events and actions to differ materially from such forward-looking statements
include, but are not limited to, competitive market pressures including pricing, changing market and economic conditions, material changes in demand from large
corporate customers, availability of temporary workers with appropriate skills required by customers, increases in wages paid to temporary workers, liabilities for
client and employee actions, foreign currency fluctuations, changes in laws and regulations (including federal, state and international tax laws), the Company’s
ability to effectively implement and manage its information technology programs, and the ability of the Company to successfully expand into new markets and
service lines. Certain risk factors are discussed more fully under “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1 of this filing.
 
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
 The financial statements and supplementary data required by this Item are set forth in the accompanying index on page 25 of this filing and are presented in pages
26-47.
 
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
 None.
 
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”)) are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.
 
There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART III
 
Information required by Part III with respect to Directors and Executive Officers of the registrant, Executive Compensation (Item 11), Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters (Item 12), Certain Relationships and Related Transactions (Item 13) and Principal
Accounting Fees and Services (Item 14), except as set forth under the titles “Executive Officers of the Registrant” and “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics,”
which are included on page 21, (Item 10), and except as set forth under the title “Equity Compensation Plan Information,” which is included on page 22, (Item
12), is to be included in a definitive proxy statement filed by the Company not later than 120 days after the close of its fiscal year and such proxy statement, when
filed, is incorporated herein by reference.
 
ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.
 

Name/Office

  

Age

  

Served as an
Officer Since (1)

  

Business Experience
During Last 5 Years

Terence E. Adderley
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer   

70
  

1961
  

Served as officer of the Company.

Carl T. Camden
President and Chief Operating Officer   

49
  

1995
  

Served as officer of the Company.

Michael L. Durik
Executive Vice President

  

55

  

1999

  

Served as officer of the Company since July, 1999. From
1993 was owner of MLD Management, an independent
consulting firm.

William K. Gerber
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer   

49
  

1998
  

Served as officer of the Company.

Arlene Grimsley
Executive Vice President   

56
  

1994
  

Served as officer of the Company.

George M. Reardon
Senior Vice President and General Counsel   

56
  

1998
  

Served as officer of the Company.

Daniel T. Lis
Vice President and Secretary   

57
  

2003
  

Served as General Counsel of Bank One, Michigan and
predecessors from 1987-2000.

(1)  Each officer serves continuously until termination of employment or removal by the Board of Directors.
 
CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS.
 The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to the Company’s directors, officers and employees, including the Company’s
principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions (collectively, the
“Selected Officers”). The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is included as Exhibit 14 in the Index to Exhibits on page 48. The Company intends to post the
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and any changes in or waivers from its code of ethics applicable to any Selected Officer on its website at
“http://www.kellyservices.com.”



22
 
ITEM 12. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION.
 The following table shows the number of securities of the Company that can be issued upon the exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights, the
weighted-average of exercise price of outstanding options, warrants and rights, and the number of securities remaining available for future issuance under the
Company’s equity compensation plans as of the fiscal year end for 2003.
 

   

Number of securities
to be issued upon

exercise of outstanding
options, warrants

and rights.

  

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

  

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in the first

column) (2)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders (1)   3,042,000  $ 25.85  827,000

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders (3)   —     —    —  

       
Total   3,042,000  $ 25.85  827,000

       

(1)  The equity compensation plans of the Company approved by the Company’s security holders include the Company’s Performance Incentive Plan and the
Company’s Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan.

   The number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights excludes 269,000 of restricted stock awards granted to
employees and not yet issued at December 28, 2003.

 (2)  The Performance Incentive Plan provides that the maximum number of shares available for grants, including stock options and restricted stock awards, is
10 percent of the outstanding Class A common stock, adjusted for plan activity over the preceding five years.

   The Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan provides that the maximum number of shares available for settlement of options is 100,000 shares of Class
A common stock.

 (3)  The Company has no equity compensation plans that have not been approved by its security holders.
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PART IV
 
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.
 (a)  The following documents are filed as part of this report:
 
 (1)  Financial statements -
 
      Report of Independent Auditors
 
      Statements of Earnings for the three fiscal years ended December 28, 2003
 
      Statements of Cash Flows for the three fiscal years ended December 28, 2003
 
      Balance Sheets at December 28, 2003, December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001
 
      Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the three fiscal years ended December 28, 2003
 
      Notes to Financial Statements
 
 (2)  Financial Statement Schedule -
 
      For the three fiscal years ended December 28, 2003:
 
      Schedule II - Valuation Reserves
 
      All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.
 
 

(3)  The Exhibits are listed in the Index to Exhibits Required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K at Item (c) below and included at page 48 which is
incorporated herein by reference.

 
No additional financial information has been provided for the registrant as an individual company since the total amount of net assets of subsidiaries which are
restricted as to transfer to the registrant through intercompany loans, advances or cash dividends does not exceed 25 percent of total consolidated net assets at
December 28, 2003.
 (b)  A report on Form 8-K dated January 21, 2004 was filed by the Company in January, 2004. The report was filed under Item 7, Financial Statements and

Exhibits, and Item 12, Results of Operations and Financial Condition.
 
(c)  The Index to Exhibits and required Exhibits are included following the Financial Statement Schedule beginning at page 48 of this filing.
 
(d)  The Index to Financial Statements and Supplemental Schedule is included following the signatures beginning at page 25 of this filing.
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SIGNATURES
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
Date: February 18, 2004    KELLY SERVICES, INC.
    Registrant

  By  /s/    W. K. Gerber
    
    W. K. Gerber

    Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in
the capacities and on the dates indicated.
 
Date: February 18, 2004    * T. E. Adderley
    
    T. E. Adderley

 

   

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 18, 2004    * C. T. Camden
    
    C. T. Camden

    President, Chief Operating Officer and Director

Date: February 18, 2004    * C. V. Fricke
    
    C. V. Fricke

    Director

Date: February 18, 2004    * M. A. Fay, O.P.
    
    M. A. Fay, O.P.

    Director

Date: February 18, 2004    * V. G. Istock
    
    V. G. Istock

    Director

Date: February 18, 2004    * B. J. White
    
    B. J. White

    Director

Date: February 18, 2004    /s/    W. K. Gerber
    
    W. K. Gerber

 

   

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: February 18, 2004  *By  /s/    W. K. Gerber
    
    W. K. Gerber

    Attorney-in-Fact
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Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the three fiscal years ended December 28, 2003   30
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Financial Statement Schedule—Schedule II—Valuation Reserves   47
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
 
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Kelly Services, Inc.
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index on page 25 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Kelly Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 28, 2003, December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 28, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index appearing on page 25 presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
As discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for goodwill and other intangibles as of December 31,
2001.
 
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Detroit, Michigan
January 20, 2004
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STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
   (In thousands of dollars except per share items)  
Revenue from services   $ 4,325,155  $ 4,056,945  $4,005,878 
Cost of services    3,628,524   3,364,219   3,308,023 
      
Gross profit    696,631   692,726   697,855 
Selling, general and administrative expenses    687,894   662,334   669,888 
      
Earnings from operations    8,737   30,392   27,967 
Interest (expense) income, net    (77)   362   (381)
      
Earnings before income taxes    8,660   30,754   27,586 
Income taxes    3,550   12,185   11,037 
      
Net earnings   $ 5,110  $ 18,569  $ 16,549 

      
Basic earnings per share   $ .14  $ .52  $ .46 
Diluted earnings per share   $ .14  $ .52  $ .46 
Dividends per share   $ .40  $ .40  $ .85 
Average shares outstanding (thousands):              

Basic    35,289   35,724   35,829 
Diluted    35,355   35,900   35,930 

 
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
   (In thousands of dollars)  
Cash flows from operating activities              

Net earnings   $ 5,110  $ 18,569  $ 16,549 
Noncash adjustments:              

Depreciation and amortization    47,795   45,428   44,396 
Deferred income taxes    2,936   6,590   (242)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities    (25,248)   19,019   84,522 
     

Net cash from operating activities    30,593   89,606   145,225 

Cash flows from investing activities              
Capital expenditures    (30,222)   (33,406)   (42,525)
Short-term investments    142   31   1,764 
(Increase) decrease in other assets    (2,487)   (3,476)   3,645 
Acquisition of building    —     —     (11,783)
Acquisition of companies    —     —     (192)

     
Net cash from investing activities    (32,567)   (36,851)   (49,091)

Cash flows from financing activities              
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings    10,280   (11,723)   (24,900)
Dividend payments    (14,143)   (14,293)   (30,408)
Exercise of stock options and other    3,865   991   139 
Purchase of treasury stock    (26,149)   (13,216)   (64)

     
Net cash from financing activities    (26,147)   (38,241)   (55,233)

     
Effect of exchange rates on cash and equivalents    3,563   2,961   (758)
     
Net change in cash and equivalents    (24,558)   17,475   40,143 
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year    100,936   83,461   43,318 
     
Cash and equivalents at end of year   $ 76,378  $ 100,936  $ 83,461 

     
 
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
   (In thousands of dollars)  
ASSETS              
Current Assets              

Cash and equivalents   $ 76,378  $ 100,936  $ 83,461 
Short-term investments    457   599   630 
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $14,983, $12,533 and $12,105, respectively    658,090   567,517   539,692 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    31,784   26,387   24,950 
Deferred taxes    24,962   23,916   21,469 

     
Total current assets    791,671   719,355   670,202 

Property and Equipment              
Land and buildings    57,543   57,111   56,639 
Equipment, furniture and leasehold improvements    302,938   295,536   275,063 
Accumulated depreciation    (172,359)   (150,315)   (119,729)

     
Net property and equipment    188,122   202,332   211,973 

Noncurrent Deferred Taxes    14,606   21,065   31,415 
Goodwill, net    85,788   80,260   73,643 
Other Assets    57,550   49,121   52,148 
     
Total Assets   $1,137,737  $1,072,133  $1,039,381 

     
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY              
Current Liabilities              

Short-term borrowings   $ 39,190  $ 24,770  $ 32,939 
Accounts payable    92,265   85,310   88,217 
Payroll and related taxes    200,503   181,585   154,813 
Accrued insurance    36,016   27,912   24,071 
Income and other taxes    49,342   47,617   48,149 

     
Total current liabilities    417,316   367,194   348,189 

Noncurrent Liabilities              
Accrued insurance    58,763   45,540   39,273 
Accrued retirement benefits    48,025   40,335   44,764 

     
Total noncurrent liabilities    106,788   85,875   84,037 

Stockholders’ Equity              
Capital stock, $1.00 par value              

Class A common stock, shares issued 36,619,148 at 2003, 36,619,148 at 2002 and
36,609,078 at 2001    36,619   36,619   36,609 

Class B common stock, shares issued 3,496,718 at 2003, 3,496,718 at 2002 and 3,506,788
at 2001    3,497   3,497   3,507 

Treasury stock, at cost              
Class A common stock, 5,319,995 shares at 2003, 4,567,975 at 2002 and 4,232,542 at 2001    (112,535)   (91,648)   (81,721)
Class B common stock, 23,475 shares at 2003, 18,875 at 2002 and 15,675 at 2001    (623)   (511)   (435)

Paid-in capital    19,096   17,902   17,035 
Earnings invested in the business    656,726   665,759   661,483 
Accumulated foreign currency adjustments    10,853   (12,554)   (29,323)

     
Total stockholders’ equity    613,633   619,064   607,155 

     
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity   $1,137,737  $1,072,133  $1,039,381 

     
 
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
   (In thousands of dollars)  
Capital Stock              

Class A common stock              
Balance at beginning of year   $ 36,619  $ 36,609  $ 36,609 
Conversions from Class B    —     10   —   

     
Balance at end of year    36,619   36,619   36,609 

Class B common stock              
Balance at beginning of year    3,497   3,507   3,507 
Conversions to Class A    —     (10)   —   

     
Balance at end of year    3,497   3,497   3,507 

Treasury Stock              
Class A common stock              

Balance at beginning of year    (91,648)   (81,721)   (84,251)
Exercise of stock options, restricted stock awards and other    5,150   2,381   1,609 
Treasury stock issued for acquisitions    —     832   921 
Purchase of treasury stock    (26,037)   (13,140)   —   

     
Balance at end of year    (112,535)   (91,648)   (81,721)

Class B common stock              
Balance at beginning of year    (511)   (435)   (371)
Purchase of treasury stock    (112)   (76)   (64)

     
Balance at end of year    (623)   (511)   (435)

Paid-in Capital              
Balance at beginning of year    17,902   17,035   16,371 
Exercise of stock options, restricted stock awards and other    1,194   699   453 
Treasury stock issued for acquisitions    —     168   211 

     
Balance at end of year    19,096   17,902   17,035 

Earnings Invested in the Business              
Balance at beginning of year    665,759   661,483   675,388 
Net earnings    5,110   18,569   16,549 
Dividends    (14,143)   (14,293)   (30,454)

     
Balance at end of year    656,726   665,759   661,483 

Accumulated Foreign Currency Adjustments              
Balance at beginning of year    (12,554)   (29,323)   (23,784)
Equity adjustment for foreign currency    23,407   16,769   (5,539)

     
Balance at end of year    10,853   (12,554)   (29,323)

     
Stockholders’ Equity at end of year   $ 613,633  $ 619,064  $ 607,155 

     
Comprehensive Income              

Net earnings   $ 5,110  $ 18,569  $ 16,549 
Other comprehensive income—Foreign currency adjustments    23,407   16,769   (5,539)

     
Comprehensive Income   $ 28,517  $ 35,338  $ 11,010 

     
 
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(In thousands of dollars except share and per share items)
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 Nature of Operations Kelly Services, Inc. (the “Company”) is a global temporary staffing leader operating in 26 countries throughout the world.
 
Fiscal Year The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday nearest to December 31. The three most recent years, all of which contained 52 weeks, ended on
December 28, 2003 (2003), December 29, 2002 (2002) and December 30, 2001 (2001). Period costs included in selling, general and administrative expenses are
recorded on a calendar-year basis.
 
Principles of Consolidation The financial statements include the accounts and operations of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
 
Foreign Currency Translation Substantially all of the Company’s international subsidiaries use their local currency as their functional currency. Revenue and
expense accounts of foreign subsidiaries are translated to U.S. dollars at average exchange rates, while assets and liabilities are translated to U.S. dollars at year-
end exchange rates. Resulting translation adjustments, net of deferred taxes, where applicable, are reported as accumulated foreign currency adjustments in
stockholders’ equity and are recorded as a component of comprehensive income.
 
Revenue Recognition Revenue from services is recognized as services are provided by the temporary, contract or leased employees. Revenue from permanent
placement services is recognized at the time the permanent placement candidate begins full-time employment. Provisions for sales allowances, based on historical
experience, are recognized at the time the related sale is recognized.
 
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable The Company records an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable based on historical loss experience,
customer payment patterns and current economic trends. The Company reviews the adequacy of the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable on a
quarterly basis and, if necessary, increases or decreases the balance.
 
Advertising Expenses Advertising expenses, which are expensed as incurred, were $11,800, $12,700 and $13,500 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
 
Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for
the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable, workers’ compensation, goodwill impairment and income taxes. Actual results could differ materially from
those estimates.
 
Cash and Equivalents Cash and equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market. The Company considers securities with original maturities of three
months or less to be cash and equivalents.
 
Property and Equipment Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, principally by the straight-line method.
Estimated useful lives range from 15 to 45 years for land improvements, buildings and building improvements, 5 years for equipment and furniture and 3 to 12
years for computer hardware and software. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lesser of the life of the lease or 5 years. The Company capitalizes
external costs and internal payroll costs incurred in the development of software for internal use in accordance with American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Statement of Position No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Capitalized software is
included with equipment, furniture and leasehold improvements on the balance sheet. Depreciation expense was $47,600 for 2003, $45,300 for 2002 and $41,500
for 2001.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(In thousands of dollars except share and per share items)
 
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets. Upon adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” in the first quarter of 2002, the Company discontinued the amortization
of goodwill. See Note 4 for the effects of adopting SFAS No. 142. During 2001 the Company amortized goodwill on a straight-line basis over periods ranging
from 20 to 40 years.
 
Purchased intangible assets, with definite lives, other than goodwill, are valued at acquisition cost and are amortized over their respective useful lives (up to 10
years) on a straight-line basis.
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Intangible Assets The Company evaluates long-lived assets and intangible assets with definite lives for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. When it is probable that undiscounted future
cash flows will not be sufficient to recover an asset’s carrying amount, the asset is written down to its fair value. Assets to be disposed of by sale, if any, are
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.
 
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or if an event occurs or circumstances change that may reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its book
value. If the fair market value of the reporting unit tested has fallen below its book value, we then compare the estimated fair value of goodwill to its book value.
If the book value exceeds the estimated fair value, an impairment loss would be recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The Company uses a discounted
cash flow methodology to determine fair value.
 
Accounts Payable and Payroll and Related Taxes Included in accounts payable and payroll and related taxes are outstanding checks in excess of funds on
deposit. Such amounts totaled $12,054, $11,156 and $14,446 in accounts payable at year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and $24,973, $21,950 and
$19,895 in payroll and related taxes at year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
 
Income Taxes The company accounts for income taxes using the liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts. Valuation allowances are provided
against deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
 
Stock-Based Compensation In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an amendment of SFAS No. 123.” This statement amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results.
 
The Company continues to account for stock-based compensation using Accounting Principles Board Statement No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and has not adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been
recognized for incentive and nonqualified stock options. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(In thousands of dollars except share and per share items)
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Net earnings, as reported   $ 5,110  $18,569  $16,549 
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value

based method for all awards, net of related tax effects    (2,134)   (2,314)   (1,686)
     
Pro forma net earnings   $ 2,976  $16,255  $14,863 

     
Earnings per share:              

Basic-as reported   $ .14  $ .52  $ .46 
Basic-pro forma   $ .08  $ .46  $ .41 

Diluted-as reported   $ .14  $ .52  $ .46 
Diluted-pro forma   $ .08  $ .45  $ .41 

 
Since stock options generally become exercisable over several years and additional grants are likely to be made in future years, the pro forma amounts for
compensation cost may not be indicative of the effects on net income and earnings per share for future years.
 
Workers’ Compensation The Company establishes accruals for workers’ compensation claims utilizing actuarial methods to estimate the undiscounted future
cash payments that will be made to satisfy the claims. The estimates are based both on historical experience as well as current legal, economic and regulatory
factors. The ultimate cost of these claims may be greater than or less than the established accrual. However, the Company believes that any such adjustments will
not materially affect its consolidated financial position.
 
Reclassifications Effective with the first quarter of 2003, the Company changed its method of reporting revenue for Kelly Staff Leasing (“KSL”), a wholly
owned subsidiary. KSL is a Professional Employer Organization (“PEO”) and is part of the PTSA segment. Consistent with changing PEO industry practice, KSL
changed from the gross method of reporting revenue to the net method under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a
Principal versus Net as an Agent.” As a result, KSL no longer included worksite employee payroll costs in revenue from services or cost of services. This change
did not impact gross profit or net earnings. Revenue from services and cost of services have been reclassified for all prior periods for comparability. The effect of
this change on prior periods was to reduce revenue from services and cost of services for 2002 and 2001 by $266.5 million and $251.0 million, respectively.
Certain other prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current presentation.
 
2. Short-term Investments
 Short-term investments are classified as available for sale. The Company did not hold federal, state or local government obligations as of year-end 2003, 2002 and
2001. The carrying amounts of short-term investments approximate market value.
 
Interest income was $961, $1,531 and $2,301 for the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
 
3. Land Sale
 In October, 2000, the Company sold undeveloped land, the proceeds from which were used in January, 2001 for the purchase of an office building that will be
utilized by the Company for future expansion. For tax purposes, the transaction has been treated as an IRS Code Section 1031 tax-free exchange.
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4. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—Adoption of Statement 142
 Effective December 31, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS
142”), which established a new method of testing goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment using a fair-value based approach. Under the new standard,
goodwill is no longer amortized as was previously required. Upon adoption, amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets ceased. Amortization of
goodwill would have been $2.7 million for fiscal year 2002.
 
SFAS 142 requires that goodwill be tested for impairment annually or if an event occurs or circumstances change that may reduce the fair value of the reporting
unit below its book value. Should circumstances change or events occur to indicate that the fair market value of the reporting unit has fallen below its book value,
management must then compare the estimated fair value of goodwill to book value. If the book value exceeds the estimated fair value, an impairment loss would
be recognized in an amount equal to that excess. Such an impairment loss would be recognized as a non-cash charge to operating income. We completed our
impairment test as of the date of adoption, December 31, 2001 and during the fourth quarter of the years ended December 29, 2002 and December 28, 2003, as
required under SFAS 142 and determined that goodwill is not impaired.
 
The following table presents net earnings and basic and diluted earnings per share for the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, as adjusted for the non-
amortization provisions of SFAS No. 142.
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

Reported net earnings   $ 5,110  $18,569  $16,549
Add back: Goodwill amortization, net of tax    —     —     2,011
       
Adjusted net earnings   $ 5,110  $18,569  $18,560

       
Basic earnings per share:             
Reported net earnings   $ 0.14  $ 0.52  $ 0.46
Goodwill amortization, net of tax    —     —     0.06
       
Adjusted net earnings   $ 0.14  $ 0.52  $ 0.52

       
Diluted earnings per share:             
Reported net earnings   $ 0.14  $ 0.52  $ 0.46
Goodwill amortization, net of tax    —     —     0.06
       
Adjusted net earnings   $ 0.14  $ 0.52  $ 0.52
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The changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill for the fiscal years 2002 and 2003 are as follows:
 

   

U.S.
Commercial

  

PTSA

  

International

  

Total

 
Balance as of December 30, 2001   $ 4,719  $ 24,899  $ 44,025  $ 73,643 

Reclassification from intangibles    34   34   232   300 
Translation adjustment    —     —     6,317   6,317 

       
Balance as of December 29, 2002    4,753   24,933   50,574   80,260 

Adjustments to previously recorded purchase price    (276)   (276)   —     (552)
Translation adjustment    —     —     6,080   6,080 

       
Balance as of December 28, 2003   $ 4,477  $ 24,657  $ 56,654  $ 85,788 

       
 
5. Short-term Borrowings
 The Company has a committed $125 million, three-year unsecured multi-currency revolving credit facility used to fund working capital, acquisitions and for
general corporate purposes. The interest rate applicable to borrowings under the line of credit is 60 basis points over LIBOR and may include additional costs if
the funds are drawn from certain countries. LIBOR rates varied by currency and ranged from 0.9% to 3.5% at December 28, 2003. Borrowings under this
arrangement were $37,700, $24,300 and $23,600 at year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The carrying amounts of the Company’s borrowings under the
lines of credit described above approximate their fair values.
 
The Company’s $125 million, three-year unsecured multi-currency revolving credit facility expires in June, 2006. This credit facility was established in June,
2003 and replaced the previous $100 million, five-year unsecured multi-currency revolving credit facility that would have expired in October, 2003.
 
During 2001, the Company had an $11,000 uncommitted credit facility to fund its Singapore acquisition. During 2002, all borrowings under this credit facility
were repaid. The outstanding balance totaled $7,800 at year-end 2001.
 
The Company has additional uncommitted one-year local credit facilities that total $30 million as of December 28, 2003. Borrowings under these lines totaled
$1,500, $500, and $1,500 at year-end 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Interest rates varied by country and ranged from 2.5% to 8.0% at year-end 2003.
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Interest expense, interest payments and weighted average interest rates related to the short-term borrowings for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Interest expense   $1,038  $1,169  $2,682 
Interest payments    1,046   1,183   2,698 
Weighted average interest rate    2.6%  3.3%  4.6%

 
6. Capitalization
 The authorized capital stock of the Company is 100,000,000 shares of Class A common stock and 10,000,000 shares of Class B common stock. Class A shares
have no voting rights and are not convertible. Class B shares have voting rights and are convertible into Class A shares on a share-for-share basis at any time.
Both classes of stock have identical rights in the event of liquidation.
 
During 2003, the Company repurchased 1,000,000 shares of Class A common stock in a negotiated transaction from the William R. Kelly Trust. The total value
of the share repurchase was $26,037, or $26.04 per share, representing a 2.7% discount to the closing market price of Kelly Class A common stock on the
business day prior to the purchase. In addition, the Company purchased 4,600 shares of its Class B common stock at a total cost of $112. During 2002, the
Company repurchased 500,000 shares of its Class A common stock from the William R. Kelly Trust. The total cost of the share repurchase was $13,140 or $26.28
per share, representing a 2.7% discount to the closing market price of Kelly Class A common stock on the business day prior to the purchase. In addition, the
Company purchased 3,200 shares of its Class B common stock at a total cost of $76. During 2001, the Company repurchased 2,858 shares of its Class B common
stock at a total cost of $64.
 
7. Earnings Per Share
 The reconciliations of earnings per share computations for the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

Net earnings   $ 5,110  $18,569  $16,549

       
Determination of shares (thousands):             
Weighted average common shares outstanding    35,289   35,724   35,829
Effect of dilutive securities:             

Stock options    47   52   1
Restricted and performance awards and other    19   124   100

       
Weighted average common shares outstanding—assuming dilution    35,355   35,900   35,930

       
Earnings per share—basic   $ .14  $ .52  $ .46
Earnings per share—assuming dilution   $ .14  $ .52  $ .46

 
Stock options to purchase 2,188,000, 1,291,000 and 2,503,000 shares of common stock at a weighted average price per share of $27.16, $27.95 and $27.04 were
outstanding during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share. The exercise prices of these options
were greater than the average market price of the common shares and the options were therefore anti-dilutive.
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8. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
 Changes in operating assets and liabilities, as disclosed in the statements of cash flows, for the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, were as follows:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable   $(63,516)  $ (9,420)  $86,491 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets    (5,930)   7,162   (1,166)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable    4,727   (4,040)   830 
Increase (decrease) in payroll and related taxes    20,490   17,522   (9,377)
Increase in accrued insurance    21,268   10,090   8,078 
Decrease in income and other taxes    (2,287)   (2,295)   (334)
     
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities   $(25,248)  $19,019  $84,522 

     
 
Cash flows from short-term investments for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Sales/Maturities   $ 745  $ 4,428  $2,318 
Purchases    (603)   (4,397)   (554)
     
Total   $ 142  $ 31  $1,764 

     
 
9. Retirement Benefits
 The Company provides a qualified defined contribution plan covering substantially all full-time employees, except officers and certain other management
employees. Upon approval by the Board of Directors, a discretionary contribution based on eligible wages is funded annually. The plan also offers a savings
feature with Company matching contributions. Assets of this plan are held by an independent trustee for the sole benefit of participating employees.
 
A nonqualified deferred compensation plan is provided for officers and certain other management employees. Upon approval by the Board of Directors, a
discretionary contribution based on eligible wages is made annually. This plan also includes provisions for salary deferrals and Company matching contributions.
 
The liability for the nonqualified plan was $48,000, $40,300 and $44,800 as of year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and is included in accrued retirement
benefits. In connection with the administration of this plan, the Company has purchased company-owned variable universal life insurance policies insuring the
lives of certain officers and key employees. The cash surrender value of these policies, which is based primarily on investments in publicly traded mutual funds,
was $49,500, $40,600 and $44,200 at year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These investments are included in other assets and are restricted for the use of
funding this plan.
 
Amounts expensed for retirement benefits totaled $2,700 in 2003, $6,500 in 2002 and $7,700 in 2001.
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10. Income Taxes
 Pretax income (loss) for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 was taxed under the following jurisdictions:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Domestic   $ 21,192  $ 42,649  $ 38,597 
Foreign    (12,532)   (11,895)   (11,011)
     
Total   $ 8,660  $ 30,754  $ 27,586 

     
 
The provision for income taxes was as follows:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Current tax expense:              

U.S. federal   $(2,300)  $ 968  $ 6,780 
U.S. state and local    2,750   2,300   2,000 
Foreign    164   2,327   2,499 

      
Total current    614   5,595   11,279 

Total deferred    2,936   6,590   (242)
      
Total provision   $ 3,550  $12,185  $11,037 

      
 
Deferred tax assets are comprised of the following:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Depreciation and amortization   $(28,173)  $(24,374)  $(14,158)
Employee compensation and benefit plans    26,888   25,944   26,112 
Workers’ compensation    32,208   25,538   22,154 
Translation adjustment    524   3,037   4,058 
Bad debt allowance    5,021   4,215   3,194 
Loss carryforwards    23,929   15,532   9,467 
Other, net    4,049   6,177   5,504 
     
Subtotal    64,446   56,069   56,331 
Valuation allowance    (24,878)   (11,088)   (3,447)
     
Net deferred tax assets    39,568   44,981   52,884 
Net deferred tax liabilities    (363)   (328)   (620)
     
Net deferred taxes   $ 39,205  $ 44,653  $ 52,264 
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The differences between income taxes for financial reporting purposes and the U.S. statutory rate of 35% are as follows:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Income tax based on statutory rate   $ 3,031  $10,764  $ 9,655 
State income taxes, net of federal benefit    1,788   1,495   1,300 
General business credits    (5,851)   (2,925)   (1,755)
Life insurance cash surrender value    (2,503)   2,394   2,236 
Valuation allowance    12,234   7,377   1,931 
Foreign items    (5,452)   (1,996)   (2,407)
Settlement of prior years’ audit issues    (336)   (5,270)   (414)
Non-deductible items    643   414   494 
Other, net    (4)   (68)   (3)
     
Total   $ 3,550  $12,185  $11,037 

     
 
In 2002, the Internal Revenue Service completed its examination of the Company’s federal income tax returns through 1999. The Company believes that adequate
tax accruals have been provided for all years.
 
The net tax effect of foreign loss carryforwards at December 28, 2003 totaled $23,929 which expire as follows:
 

Year

  

Amount

2004-2005   $ 486
2006-2008    3,782
2009-2013    3,639
No expiration    16,022
   
Total   $23,929

   
 
The Company has established a valuation allowance for loss carryforwards and future deductible items related to certain foreign operations. The valuation
allowance is determined in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 (SFAS 109), “Accounting for Income Taxes,”
which requires an assessment of both negative and positive evidence when measuring the need for a valuation allowance. The Company’s foreign losses in recent
periods represented sufficient negative evidence to require a valuation allowance under SFAS 109. The Company intends to maintain a valuation allowance until
sufficient positive evidence exists to support realization of the foreign deferred tax assets.
 
Provision has not been made for U.S. or additional foreign income taxes on an estimated $21,367 of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries, which are
permanently reinvested. If such earnings were to be remitted, management believes that U.S. foreign tax credits would largely eliminate any such U.S. and
foreign income taxes.
 
The Company paid income taxes of $10,000 in 2003, $10,300 in 2002 and $12,700 in 2001. Deferred income taxes recorded in foreign currency translation
adjustments were a charge of $2,513 in 2003 and $1,021 in 2002 and a credit of $554 in 2001, respectively.
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11. Performance Incentive Plan
 Under the Performance Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), the Company may grant stock options (both incentive and nonqualified), stock appreciation rights (SARs),
restricted awards and performance awards to key employees utilizing the Company’s Class A stock. Stock options may not be granted at prices less than the fair
market value on the date of grant, nor for a term exceeding 10 years. The Plan provides that the maximum number of shares available for grants is 10 percent of
the outstanding Class A stock, adjusted for Plan activity over the preceding five years. Shares available for future grants at year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001 were
797,000, 1,133,000 and 1,269,000, respectively.
 
The Company applies APB No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for the Plan. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for incentive
and nonqualified stock options. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation.
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Net earnings, as reported   $ 5,110  $18,569  $16,549 
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value

based method for all awards, net of related tax effects    (2,134)   (2,314)   (1,686)
     
Pro forma net earnings   $ 2,976  $16,255  $14,863 

     
Earnings per share:              

Basic-as reported   $ .14  $ .52  $ .46 
Basic-pro forma   $ .08  $ .46  $ .41 

Diluted-as reported   $ .14  $ .52  $ .46 
Diluted-pro forma   $ .08  $ .45  $ .41 

 
Since stock options generally become exercisable over several years and additional grants are likely to be made in future years, the pro forma amounts for
compensation cost may not be indicative of the effects on net income and earnings per share for future years.
 
The fair value of each option included is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Dividend yield   1.9% 2.0% 4.0%
Risk-free interest rate   3.0% 4.0% 5.0%
Expected volatility   31.7% 31.0% 30.0%
Expected lives   5 yrs  5 yrs  6 yrs 
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A summary of the status of stock option grants under the Plan as of December 28, 2003, December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001, and changes during the
years ended on those dates, is presented as follows:
 

   

Options

  

Weighted Avg.
Exercise Price

2001:         
Outstanding at beginning of year    2,071,000  $ 27.29
Granted    533,000   24.36
Exercised    (4,000)   24.68
Cancelled    (288,000)   27.52
    
Outstanding at end of year    2,312,000  $ 26.60

    
Options exercisable at year end    1,022,000  $ 28.25
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year   $ 5.86    

2002:         
Outstanding at beginning of year    2,312,000  $ 26.60
Granted    460,000   22.69
Exercised    (40,000)   23.83
Cancelled    (123,000)   24.77
    
Outstanding at end of year    2,609,000  $ 26.04

    
Options exercisable at year end    1,454,000  $ 27.55
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year   $ 6.30    

2003:         
Outstanding at beginning of year    2,609,000  $ 26.04
Granted    626,000   24.63
Exercised    (158,000)   24.22
Cancelled    (105,000)   25.92
    
Outstanding at end of year    2,972,000  $ 25.86

    
Options exercisable at year end    1,772,000  $ 27.06
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year   $ 6.66    
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The following table summarizes information about options outstanding at year-end 2003:
 

   

Options Outstanding

  

Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices

  

Number
Outstanding
as of 12/28/03

  

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Life (Years)

  

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

  

Number
Exercisable

as of 12/28/03

  

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

$20.00-22.00   121,000  8.03  $ 21.00  74,000  $ 21.00
$22.01-24.00   849,000  7.10   23.27  449,000   23.58
$24.01-25.00   763,000  7.82   24.50  296,000   24.48
$25.01-28.00   583,000  7.45   25.75  309,000   26.07
$28.01-32.00   382,000  3.09   29.21  370,000   29.24
$32.01-36.50   274,000  4.27   35.33  274,000   35.33
           
$20.00-36.50   2,972,000  6.62  $ 25.86  1,772,000  $ 27.06

           
 
Restricted awards are issued to certain key employees and are subject to forfeiture until the end of an established restriction period. Restricted awards totaling
159,900, 101,800 and 166,500 shares were granted under the Plan during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The weighted average grant date price of such
awards was $24.71, $22.72 and $26.21 for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Restricted awards outstanding totaled 269,000, 228,000 and 241,000 shares at year-
end 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and have a weighted average remaining life of 1.9 years at December 28, 2003.
 
Total compensation cost recognized for restricted awards was $2,800, $3,000 and $2,200 for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 28, 2003, no
SARs have been granted under the Plan.
 
12. Lease Commitments
 The Company conducts its field operations primarily from leased facilities. The following is a schedule by fiscal year of future minimum commitments under
operating leases as of December 28, 2003:
 

Fiscal year:     
2004   $ 41,700
2005    33,800
2006    25,800
2007    19,000
2008    12,200
Later years    16,000

   
Total   $148,500

   
 
Lease expense for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 amounted to $49,000, $46,800 and $44,500, respectively.
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13. Contingencies
 The Company is subject to various legal proceedings, claims and liabilities which arise in the ordinary course of its business. Litigation is subject to many
uncertainties, the outcome of individual litigated matters is not predictable with assurance and it is reasonably possible that some of the foregoing matters could
be decided unfavorably to the Company. Although the amount of the liability at year-end 2003 with respect to these matters cannot be ascertained, the Company
believes that any resulting liability will not be material to the financial position of the Company at year-end 2003.
 
The Company has no material unrecorded commitments, losses, contingencies or guarantees associated with any related parties or unconsolidated entities.
 
14. Segment Disclosures
 The Company’s reportable segments are: (1) U.S. Commercial Staffing, (2) Professional, Technical and Staffing Alternatives (PTSA) and (3) International. U.S.
Commercial Staffing includes traditional office services, along with education, call center and light industrial staffing. PTSA includes various specialty staffing
services ranging from finance and engineering to information, legal and health care. The staffing alternatives units include staff leasing, outsourcing, consulting,
recruitment and vendor management services. International includes staffing services in the countries outside the U.S. listed below. The accounting policies of the
segments are the same as those described in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
 
During 2003, international operations were conducted in Australia, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, France, Germany, Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Ireland, Italy,
Luxembourg, Malaysia, Mexico, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, the Philippines, Puerto Rico, Russia, Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Thailand
and the United Kingdom.
 
The following table presents information about the reported operating income of the Company for the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001. Segment data presented
is net of intersegment revenues. Asset information by reportable segment is not reported, since the Company does not produce such information internally.
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

 
Revenue from services:              
U.S. Commercial Staffing   $2,131,529  $2,104,622  $2,094,798 
PTSA    895,002   870,370   824,081 
International    1,298,624   1,081,953   1,086,999 
     

Consolidated Total   $4,325,155  $4,056,945  $4,005,878 

     
Earnings (loss) from operations:              
U.S. Commercial Staffing   $ 92,943  $ 118,656  $ 114,688 
PTSA    52,992   50,954   47,984 
International    (984)   4,931   9,138 
Corporate    (136,214)   (144,149)   (143,843)
     

Consolidated Total   $ 8,737  $ 30,392  $ 27,967 
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Specified items included in segment earnings for the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

Depreciation and Amortization:             
U.S. Commercial Staffing   $ 5,501  $ 5,480  $ 5,322
PTSA    1,795   1,923   2,747
International    8,704   8,828   11,723
Corporate    31,795   29,197   24,604
       

Consolidated Total   $ 47,795  $45,428  $44,396

       
Interest Income:             
U.S. Commercial Staffing   $ —    $ —    $ —  
PTSA    3   —     —  
International    543   616   417
Corporate    415   915   1,884
       

Consolidated Total   $ 961  $ 1,531  $ 2,301

       
Interest Expense:             
U.S. Commercial Staffing   $ —    $ —    $ —  
PTSA    —     —     —  
International    533   1,056   2,542
Corporate    505   113   140
       

Consolidated Total   $ 1,038  $ 1,169  $ 2,682

       
 
A summary of long-lived assets information by geographic area as of the years ended 2003, 2002 and 2001 follows:
 

   

2003

  

2002

  

2001

Long-Lived Assets:             
Domestic   $ 195,997  $ 211,312  $218,774
International    84,525   78,771   73,597
       

Total   $ 280,522  $290,083  $292,371

       
 
Long-lived assets include property and equipment and intangible assets. No single foreign country’s long-lived assets were material to the consolidated long-lived
assets of the Company.
 
Foreign revenue is based on the country in which the legal subsidiary is domiciled. No single foreign country’s revenue was material to the consolidated revenues
of the Company.
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15. New Accounting Pronouncements
 In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (FIN 46) which
requires the consolidation of variable interest entities, as defined. FIN 46 is applicable to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. Variable interest
entities created prior to February 1, 2003, must be consolidated effective December 31, 2003. Disclosures are required currently if the Company expects to
consolidate any variable interest entities. In December 2003, the FASB redeliberated certain proposed modifications and revised FIN 46 (“FIN 46 (R)”). The
revised provisions are applicable no later than the first reporting period ending after March 15, 2004. The Company does not have any variable interest entities;
therefore FIN 46 and FIN 46 (R) will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.
 
In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 149”). SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”). SFAS 149 is
generally effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The Company does not
have any derivative instruments; therefore SFAS 149 will not have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.
 
In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No.150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS 150”).
SFAS 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures three classes of freestanding financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities
and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). SFAS 150 was
effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003. The Company has not entered into any financial instruments within the scope of SFAS 150 since May 31, 2003, nor does it currently hold any
financial instruments within its scope.
 
In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to SFAS No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures About Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits,” (“SFAS 132”)
which revises employers’ disclosures about pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans. It requires disclosures in addition to those in the original SFAS
No. 132 about the assets, obligations, cash flows and net periodic benefit cost of defined pension plans and other defined benefit postretirement plans. The
Company does not offer a defined pension plan or other defined benefit postretirement plans within the scope of the revised SFAS No. 132.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

 
SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudited)
 

   

First
Quarter

  

Second
Quarter

  

Third
Quarter

  

Fourth
Quarter

  

Year

   (In thousands of dollars except per share items)
Revenue from services (1)                     

2003   $ 1,003,397  $ 1,059,517  $ 1,097,268  $ 1,164,973  $ 4,325,155
2002    936,613   1,014,841   1,057,290   1,048,201   4,056,945
2001    1,030,328   1,006,418   1,000,476   968,656   4,005,878

Cost of services (1)                     
2003    837,845   887,113   924,661   978,905   3,628,524
2002    777,653   844,625   875,028   866,913   3,364,219
2001    848,954   828,099   828,755   802,215   3,308,023

Selling, general and administrative expenses                     
2003    165,162   169,955   169,898   182,879   687,894
2002    157,774   163,741   171,547   169,272   662,334
2001    173,199   167,448   163,975   165,266   669,888

Net earnings                     
2003    310   1,484   1,504   1,812   5,110
2002    796   3,935   6,505   7,333   18,569
2001    4,800   6,460   4,566   723   16,549

Basic earnings per share (2)                     
2003    .01   .04   .04   .05   .14
2002    .02   .11   .18   .21   .52
2001    .13   .18   .13   .02   .46

Diluted earnings per share (2)                     
2003    .01   .04   .04   .05   .14
2002    .02   .11   .18   .21   .52
2001    .13   .18   .13   .02   .46

Dividends per share                     
2003    .10   .10   .10   .10   .40
2002    .10   .10   .10   .10   .40
2001    .25   .25   .25   .10   .85

(1)  As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of reporting revenue for Kelly Staff Leasing. This change did not
impact gross profit or net earnings. Revenue from services and cost of services adjustments for the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2002 were
$63.4 million, $62.1 million, $65.4 million and $75.6 million, respectively. Revenue from services and cost of services adjustments for the first, second,
third and fourth quarters of 2001 were $56.9 million, $59.8 million, $65.9 million and $68.4 million, respectively.

(2)  Earnings per share amounts for each quarter are required to be computed independently and may not equal the amounts computed for the total year.
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION RESERVES
Kelly Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

December 28, 2003
(In thousands of dollars)

 

   

Balance
at

beginning
of year

  

Charged
to costs

and
expenses

  

Currency
exchange

effects

  

Deductions
from

reserves

  

Balance
at end of

year

Description                  

Fifty-two weeks ended December 28, 2003:                  
Reserve deducted in the balance sheet from the assets to which it applies -                  

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 12,533  7,985  650  (6,185)  $ 14,983

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance   $ 11,088  12,234  1,556  —    $ 24,878

Fifty-two weeks ended December 29, 2002:                  
Reserve deducted in the balance sheet from the assets to which it applies -                  

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 12,105  7,882  451  (7,905)  $ 12,533

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance   $ 3,447  7,377  264  —    $ 11,088

Fifty-two weeks ended December 30, 2001:                  
Reserve deducted in the balance sheet from the assets to which it applies -                  

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 13,614  8,272  (186)  (9,595)  $ 12,105

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance   $ 1,581  1,931  (65)  —    $ 3,447
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Exhibit 3.1
 RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF
KELLY SERVICES, INC.

 * * * * *
 
Kelly Services, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Delaware, certifies as follows:
 
 1.  The name of the Corporation is KELLY SERVICES, INC.
 
 

2.  The original certificate of incorporation was filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on August 27, 1952 under the name of PERSONNEL
SERVICE, INC.

 

 

3.  This Restated Certificate was duly adopted in accordance with Section 245 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, without vote of
the stockholders. This Restated Certificate of Incorporation only restates and integrates and does not further amend the provisions of the
corporation’s Certificate of Incorporation as theretofore amended or supplemented, and there is no discrepancy between those provisions and the
provisions of the restated certificate.

 
 4.  The text of the Certificate of Incorporation of the corporation is hereby restated so as to read in its entirety as follows:
 

FIRST: The name of this corporation is Kelly Services, Inc.
 

SECOND: Its principal office in the State of Delaware is located at 1209 Orange Street, in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle. The name
of its resident agent at such address is The Corporation Trust Company.
 

THIRD: The nature of the business, or objects or purposes to be transacted, promoted or carried on are:
 To furnish office, clerical, supervisory and consultant services.
 

To manufacture, purchase or otherwise acquire, invest in, own, mortgage, pledge, sell, assign and transfer or otherwise dispose of, trade, deal in and
deal with goods, wares and merchandise and personal property of every class and description.
 

To acquire, and pay for in cash, stock or bonds of this corporation or otherwise, the good will, rights, assets and property, and to undertake or assume
the whole or any part of the obligations or liabilities of any person, firm, association or corporation.
 

To acquire, hold, use, sell, assign, lease, grant licenses in respect of, mortgage or otherwise dispose of letters patent of the United States or any
foreign country, patent rights, licenses and privileges, inventions, improvements and processes, copyrights, trade-marks and trade names, relating to or useful in
connection with any business of this corporation.
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To acquire by purchase, subscription or otherwise, and to receive, hold, own, guarantee, sell, assign, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or
otherwise dispose of or deal in and with any of the shares of the capital stock, or any voting trust certificates in respect of the shares of capital stock, scrip,
warrants, rights, bonds, debentures, notes, trust receipts, and other securities, obligations, choses in action and evidences of indebtedness or interest issued or
created by any corporations, joint stock companies, syndicates, associations, firms, trusts or persons, public or private, or by the government of the United States
of America, or by any foreign government, or by any state, territory, province, municipality or other political subdivision or by any governmental agency, and as
owner thereof to possess and exercise all the rights, powers and privileges of ownership, including the right to execute consents and vote thereon, and to do any
and all acts and things necessary or advisable for the preservation, protection, improvement and enhancement in value thereof.
 

To enter into, make and perform contracts of every kind and description with any person, firm, association, corporation, municipality, county, state,
body politic or government or colony or dependency thereof.
 

To borrow or raise moneys for any of the purposes of the corporation and, from time to time, without limit as to amount to draw, make, accept,
endorse, execute and issue promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange, warrants, bonds, debentures and other negotiable or non-negotiable instruments and
evidences of indebtedness, and to secure the payment of any thereof and of the interest thereon by mortgage upon or pledge, conveyance or assignment in trust of
the whole or any part of the property of the corporation, whether at the time owned or thereafter acquired, and to sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of such bonds
or other obligations of the corporation for its corporate purposes.
 

To loan to any person, firm or corporation any of its surplus funds, either with or without security.
 

To purchase, hold, sell and transfer the shares of its own capital stock; provided it shall not use its funds or property for the purchase of its own
shares of capital stock when such use would cause any impairment of its capital except as otherwise permitted by law, and provided further that shares of its own
capital stock belonging to it shall not be voted upon directly or indirectly.
 

To operate a private trade school and business school in the State of Michigan after obtaining the necessary license for such operation for the
instruction of students in various office skills, including, but not by way of limitation, instruction in the use of various office equipment and machines.
 

To have one or more offices, to carry on all or any of its operations and business and without restriction or limit as to amount to purchase or
otherwise acquire, hold, own, mortgage, sell, convey, or otherwise dispose of real and personal property of every class and description in any of the States,
Districts, Territories or Colonies of the United States, and in any and all foreign countries, subject to the laws of such State, District, Territory, Colony or Country.
 

In general, to carry on any other business in connection with the foregoing, and to have and exercise all the powers conferred by the laws of
Delaware upon corporations formed under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, and to do any or all of the things hereinbefore set forth to the
same extent as natural persons might or could do.
 

The objects and purposes specified in the foregoing clauses shall, except where otherwise expressed, be in nowise limited or restricted by reference
to, or inference from, the terms of any other clause in this certificate of incorporation, but the objects and purposes specified in each of the foregoing clauses of
this article shall be regarded as independent objects and purposes.
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FOURTH:
 Division A
 

The total number of shares of stock which the corporation shall have authority to issue is 110,000,000 shares, the par value of each of the shares is
$1.00, amounting in the aggregate to $110,000,000, and the shares are divided into two classes consisting of 100,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock and
10,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock.
 

Division B
 

The designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions in respect of
the shares of each class are as follows:
 

 

(a)  Dividends. Holders of the Class A Common Stock and the Class B Common Stock shall be entitled to receive dividends, out of funds legally
available therefor, when and as declared by the Board of Directors, subject only to the limitations that (1) no cash dividend payable on the
shares of the Class B Common Stock shall be declared unless the Board of Directors shall concurrently declare a cash dividend on the shares
of the Class A Common Stock at a rate which is not less than the rate of the cash dividend payable on the shares of the Class B Common
Stock (but a cash dividend may be declared on the Class A Common Stock without declaring a cash dividend on the Class B Common
Stock), and (2) no dividend payable in shares of the Class B Common Stock shall be declared on the Class A Common Stock (but a dividend
payable in shares of Class A Common Stock may be declared on the Class A Common Stock or the Class B Common Stock and a dividend
payable in shares of Class B Common Stock may be declared on the Class B Common Stock).

 
(b) Voting Rights. Except on matters where their vote is required by Delaware law, the holders of the Class A Common Stock shall not be entitled to

vote on any matter coming before any meeting of stockholders. The holders of the Class B Common Stock shall be entitled to one vote per share upon each
matter coming before any meeting of stockholders.
 

(c) Conversion of Class B Common Stock.
 1. Shares of Class B Common Stock shall be convertible, at the option of the respective holders thereof, at any time, into fully paid and non-
assessable shares of Class A Common Stock on the basis of one share of Class A Common Stock for each share of Class B Common Stock.
 

2. No payment or adjustment with respect to dividends on shares of the Class A Common Stock or on the Class B Common Stock shall be
made in connection with any conversion of shares of Class B Common Stock into shares of Class A Common Stock.
 

3. The holders of a certificate or certificates for Class B Common Stock, in order to effect the conversion of shares represented thereby, shall
surrender the certificate or certificates to the corporation or to the Transfer Agent for the shares of the Class B Common Stock, with request for conversion. If the
shares of the Class A Common Stock issuable upon conversion are to be issued in a name other than that in which the shares of the Class B Common Stock to be
converted are registered, the certificate or certificates shall be duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by a duly executed stock transfer power, and shall also
be accompanied by the necessary stock transfer stamps or equivalent funds.
 

Upon surrender of the certificate or certificates, the corporation shall issue and deliver or cause to be issued and delivered to the person
entitled thereto a certificate or certificates for the number of full shares of the Class A Common Stock issuable upon conversion. The corporation shall pay all
original issue taxes, if any, payable upon the issue of shares of the Class A Common Stock issued upon any conversion.
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The conversion shall be deemed to have been effected on the date of the surrender of the certificate or certificates of shares of the Class B
Common Stock, and the person in whose name the certificate or certificates of the shares of the Class A Common Stock issuable upon conversion are to be issued
shall be deemed to be the holder of record of the shares as of that date.
 

4. If there should be any capital reorganization or any reclassification of the Class A Common Stock, the shares of the Class B Common
Stock shall thereafter have the right to be converted into the number of shares of stock or other securities or property of the corporation to which outstanding
shares of the Class A Common Stock would have been entitled upon the effective date of the reorganization or reclassification. The Board of Directors shall make
an appropriate adjustment in the application of the provisions of this paragraph (c) with respect to the conversion rights of the holders of the shares of the Class B
Common Stock after the reorganization or reclassification, to the end that the provisions shall be applicable, as nearly as reasonably may be, in respect to any
shares or other securities or property thereafter issuable or deliverable upon the conversion of shares of the Class B Common Stock. The provisions of this sub-
paragraph shall not apply to a reorganization or reclassification involving merely a subdivision or combination of outstanding shares of the Class A Common
Stock.
 

5. In case the corporation shall be consolidated with or merged into any other corporation or shall sell or transfer its property and business as
or substantially as an entirety, then the stock or other securities or other property, including cash, issuable or deliverable in connection with such consolidation,
merger or sale in respect of each share of the Class A Common Stock then outstanding, shall thereafter, for the purposes of the conversion rights of the Class B
Common Stock, be deemed the equivalent of one share of Class A Common Stock. Upon the exercise of conversion rights, holders of Class B Common Stock
shall be entitled to receive on an equivalent basis and at the same rate and on the other terms and conditions set forth in this paragraph (c), the stock or other
securities or property, including cash, deemed to be the equivalent of Class A Common Stock. Lawful provisions to this effect shall be made a part of and
condition to the consolidation, merger or sale.
 

6. In case the corporation shall propose (i) to effect any reclassification of the Class A Common Stock or any capital reorganization
involving a change in the Class A Common Stock, other than a reclassification or reorganization involving merely a subdivision or combination of outstanding
shares of the Class A Common Stock, or (ii) to consolidate with or merge into another corporation, or to sell or transfer its property and business as or
substantially as an entirety, then, in each such case, the corporation shall file with each Transfer Agent for the shares of the Class B Common Stock and shall mail
to the holders of record of the shares at their respective addresses then appearing on the records of the corporation a statement, signed by an officer of the
corporation, with respect to the proposed action, the statement to be so filed and mailed at least 30 days prior to the record date for holders of the Class A
Common Stock for the purposes thereof. The statement shall set forth such facts with respect to the proposed action as shall be reasonably necessary to inform
each Transfer Agent for the shares of the Class B Common Stock and the holders of those shares as to the effect of the action upon the conversion rights of the
holders.
 

7. The corporation shall at all times have authorized but unissued, or in its treasury, a number of shares of the Class A Common Stock
sufficient for the conversion of all shares of the Class B Common Stock from time to time outstanding.
 

8. In case the shares of the Class A Common Stock or the Class B Common Stock at any time outstanding shall, by reclassification or
otherwise, be subdivided into a greater number of shares or combined into a lesser number of shares, the shares of Class B Common Stock or Class A Common
Stock, respectively, then outstanding shall, at the same time, be subdivided or combined, as the case may be, on the same basis.
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(d) Preemptive Rights. Holders of the Class A Common Stock shall have no preemptive right to subscribe to any securities issued by the corporation.
Holders of the Class B Common Stock shall have the preemptive right to subscribe to additional shares of Class B Common Stock, or any other voting stock or
any security convertible into Class B Common Stock or other voting stock, hereafter issued by the corporation.
 

(e) Liquidation Preferences.
 1. In the event of dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of the Class A
Common Stock and of the Class B Common Stock shall be entitled to payment out of the assets of the corporation ratably in accordance with the number of
shares held by them respectively.
 

2. Neither a consolidation nor a merger of the corporation with or into any other corporation, nor a merger of any other corporation into the
corporation, nor the purchase or other acquisition by the corporation of all or a part of the outstanding shares of any class or classes of its stock, nor the sale or
transfer of the property and business of the corporation, as or substantially as an entirety, shall be considered a dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the
corporation within the meaning of the foregoing provisions.
 

FIFTH: The business, property and affairs of this corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors consisting of no fewer than five (5) and no
more than nine (9) members, the exact number to be determined from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors. The directors shall be classified with
respect to the term for which they shall severally hold office by dividing them into three classes, as nearly equal in number as may be, the classes to hold office
for successive terms of three years, respectively, but all directors of the corporation shall hold office until their successors are elected and qualified. The Board of
Directors may exercise all such powers of the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation or by
the by-laws directed or required to be exercised or done by the stockholders.
 

Newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors and vacancies in the Board of Directors from death,
resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause, shall be filled by a majority vote of the directors then in office, and directors so
chosen shall hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting at which the term of the class to which they shall have been elected expires. No decrease in the
number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall shorten the term of any incumbent director.
 

Any director, or the entire Board of Directors, may be removed at any time, but only for cause. The affirmative vote of the holders of 75% of the
voting power of all of the stock of this corporation entitled to vote in elections of directors shall be required to remove a director from office. The stockholders of
the corporation are expressly prohibited from cumulating their votes in any election of directors of the corporation.
 

SIXTH: The names and places of residence of the incorporators were as follows:
 

NAMES

  

RESIDENCES

L. E. Gray   Wilmington, Delaware
S. M. Brown   Wilmington, Delaware
A. D. Atwell   Townsend, Delaware

 
SEVENTH: By-laws of the corporation may be adopted, amended or repealed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the total number of directors

or by the affirmative vote of the holders of 75% of the voting power of all of the stock of this corporation entitled to vote in elections of directors. The by-laws
may contain any provision for the regulation and management of the affairs of the corporation and the rights or powers of its stockholders, directors, officers, or
employees not inconsistent with the laws of the State of Delaware.
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EIGHTH:
 (a) Except as set forth in paragraph (d) of this Article, the affirmative vote of the holders of 75% of the voting power of all of the stock of this
corporation entitled to vote in elections of directors shall be required:
 (i) for a merger or consolidation of this corporation or any subsidiary thereof with or into any other corporation, or
 (ii) for any sale or lease of all or any substantial part of the assets of this corporation or any subsidiary thereof to any other corporation,

person or other entity, or
 (iii) for any sale or lease to this corporation or any subsidiary thereof of any assets (except assets having an aggregate fair market value of

less than $5,000,000) in exchange for voting securities (or securities convertible into voting securities or options, warrants or rights to
purchase voting securities or securities convertible into voting securities) of this corporation or any subsidiary by any other corporation,
person or other entity, if as of the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice thereof and to vote thereon the other
corporation, person or other entity which is party to the transaction is the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 5% or more in number of
shares of the outstanding shares of any class of stock of this corporation entitled to vote in elections of directors.

 
(b) For purposes of this Article, any corporation, person or other entity shall be deemed to be the beneficial owner of any shares of stock of this

corporation,
 (i) which it owns directly, whether or not of record; or
 (ii) which it has the right to acquire pursuant to any agreement or understanding or upon exercise of conversion rights, warrants or options or

otherwise, whether or not presently exercisable; or
 (iii) which are beneficially owned, directly or indirectly (including shares deemed to be owned through application of clause (ii) above) by

an “affiliate” or “associate” as those terms are defined herein; or
 (iv) which are beneficially owned, directly or indirectly by any other corporation, person or entity (including any shares which the other

corporation, person or entity has the right to acquire pursuant to any agreement or understanding or upon exercise of conversion rights,
warrants or options or otherwise, whether or not presently exercisable) with which it or its “affiliates” or “associates” has any agreement or
arrangement or understanding for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or disposing of stock of this corporation.

 
For the purposes of this Article EIGHTH, the outstanding shares of stock of this corporation shall include shares deemed owned through the

application of clauses (b) (ii), (iii) and (iv) above, but shall not include any other shares which may be issuable pursuant to any agreement or upon exercise of
conversion rights, warrants, options or otherwise.
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For the purposes of this Article EIGHTH, the term “affiliate” shall mean any person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, the corporation, person or other entity. The term “control” (including the terms “controlling,”
“controlled by” and “under common control with”) means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management
and policies of the corporation, person or other entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise.
 

For the purposes of this Article EIGHTH, the term “associate” shall mean (1) any corporation or organization (other than this corporation or a
majority-owned subsidiary of this corporation) of which the corporation, person or other entity is an officer or partner or is, directly or indirectly, the beneficial
owner of 10% or more of any class of equity securities; (2) any trust or other estate in which the corporation, person or other entity has a substantial beneficial
interest or as to which the corporation, person or other entity serves as a trustee or in a similar fiduciary capacity; and (3) any relative or spouse of a person, or
any relative of a spouse, who has the same home as the person or who is a director or officer of this corporation or any of its subsidiaries.
 

(c) The Board of Directors shall have the power and duty to determine for the purpose of this Article EIGHTH on the basis of information known to
the Board of Directors of this corporation, whether
 i) the other corporation, person or other entity beneficially owns more than 5% in number of shares of the outstanding shares of any class of

stock of this corporation entitled to vote in elections of directors;
 (ii) a corporation, person or other entity is an “affiliate” or “associate” (as defined in paragraph (b) above) of another; and
 (iii) the assets being acquired by this corporation, or any subsidiary thereof, have an aggregate fair market value of less than $5,000,000.
 

Any such determination shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes of this Article EIGHTH.
 

(d) The provisions of this Article EIGHTH shall not apply to any merger or other transaction referred to in this Article EIGHTH with any
corporation, person or other entity if (1) the Board of Directors of this corporation has approved a memorandum of understanding with the other corporation,
person or other entity with respect to the transaction prior to the time that the other corporation, person or other entity shall have become a beneficial owner of
more than 5% in number of shares of the outstanding shares of stock of any class of this corporation entitled to vote in elections of directors; or (2) the transaction
is otherwise approved by the Board of Directors of this corporation, provided that a majority of the members of the Board of Directors voting for the approval of
the transaction were duly elected and acting members of the Board of Directors prior to the time that the other corporation, person or other entity shall have
become a beneficial owner of more than 5% in number of shares of the outstanding shares of stock of any class of this corporation entitled to vote in elections of
directors. In addition, the provisions of this Article EIGHTH shall not apply to any merger or other transaction referred to in this Article EIGHTH with a
subsidiary (which terms shall mean a corporation of which a majority of the outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote in elections of directors is owned by this
corporation directly, and/or indirectly through one or more other subsidiaries).
 

NINTH: In furtherance, and not in limitation of the powers conferred by statute, the Board of Directors is expressly authorized:
 To fix the amount to be reserved as working capital over and above its capital stock paid in, to authorize and cause to be executed mortgages and
liens upon the real and personal property of this corporation.
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From time to time to determine whether and to what extent, and at what times and places, and under what conditions and regulations, the accounts
and books of this corporation (other than the stock ledger), or any of them, shall be open to inspection of stockholders; and no stockholder shall have any right of
inspecting any account, book or document of this corporation except as conferred by statute, unless authorized by a resolution of the stockholders or directors.
 

By resolution or resolutions, passed by a majority of the whole board to designate one or more committees, each committee to consist of two or more
of the directors of the corporation, which, to the extent provided in said resolution or resolutions, or in the by-laws of this corporation, shall have and may
exercise the powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of this corporation, and may have power to authorize the seal of this
corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. The committee or committees shall have the name or names as may be stated in the by-laws of this
corporation or as may be determined from time to time by resolution adopted by the Board of Directors.
 

This corporation may in its by-laws confer powers upon its directors in addition to the foregoing, and in addition to the powers and authorities
expressly conferred upon them by the statute.
 

Both stockholders and directors shall have power, if the by-laws so provide, to hold their meetings, and to have one or more offices within or without
the State of Delaware, and to keep the books of this corporation (subject to the provisions of the statutes), outside of the State of Delaware at such places as may
be from time to time designated by the Board of Directors.
 

TENTH: Whenever a compromise or arrangement is proposed between this corporation and its creditors or any class of them and/or between this
corporation and its stockholders or any class of them, any court of equitable jurisdiction within the State of Delaware may, on the application in a summary way
of this corporation or of any creditor or stockholder thereof, or on the application of any receiver or receivers appointed for this corporation under the provisions
of Section 3883 of the Revised Code of 1915 of said State, or on the application of trustees in dissolution or of any receiver or receivers appointed for this
corporation under the provisions of Section 43 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, order a meeting of the creditors or class of creditors,
and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of this corporation, as the case may be, to be summoned in such manner as the said Court directs. If a majority
in number representing three-fourths in value of the creditors or class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of this corporation, as the
case may be, agree to any compromise or arrangement and to any reorganization of this corporation as consequence of such compromise or arrangement, the said
compromise or arrangement and the said reorganization shall, if sanctioned by the Court to which the said application has been made, be binding on all the
creditors or class of creditors, and/or on all the stockholders or class of stockholders, of this corporation, as the case may be, and also on this corporation.
 

ELEVENTH: The Board of Directors of this corporation, when evaluating any offer of another party to (a) make a tender or exchange offer for any
equity security of this corporation; (b) merge or consolidate this corporation with another corporation; or (c) purchase or otherwise acquire all or substantially all
of the properties and assets of this corporation, shall, in connection with the exercise of its judgment in determining what is in the best interest of this corporation
and its stockholders, give due consideration to such factors as the Board of Directors determines to be relevant, including without limitation, the social, legal and
economic effects of the proposed transaction upon employees, customers, suppliers, and other affected persons, firms and corporations and on the communities in
which this corporation and its subsidiaries operate or are located.
 

TWELFTH: No action required or permitted to be taken at any annual or special meeting of the stockholders of this corporation may be taken
without a meeting and the power of stockholders to consent in writing, without a meeting, to the taking of any action is specifically denied.
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THIRTEENTH: No director of the corporation shall be personally liable to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of
fiduciary duty by such director as a director; provided, however, that this Article THIRTEENTH shall not eliminate or limit liability (i) for any breach of the
director’s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing
violation of law, (iii) under section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper
personal benefit. The foregoing provisions of this Article THIRTEENTH shall not eliminate the liability of a director for any act or omission occurring prior to
the date on which this Article THIRTEENTH becomes effective. No amendment or repeal of this Article THIRTEENTH shall apply to or have any effect on the
liability or alleged liability of any director of the corporation for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to such amendment or
repeal.
 

FOURTEENTH: Special meetings of the stockholders of this corporation for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the Board of
Directors or by a committee of the Board of Directors which has been duly designated by the Board of Directors and whose powers and authority, as provided in a
resolution of the Board of Directors or in the by-laws of this corporation, include the power to call such meetings, but such special meetings may not be called by
any other person or persons.
 

FIFTEENTH: This corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in this Certificate of Incorporation, in the
manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights conferred upon stockholders herein are granted subject to this reservation. Notwithstanding any other
provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or the by-laws of this corporation (and in addition to any other vote that may be required by law, this Certificate of
Incorporation, or by the by-laws of this corporation), the affirmative vote of the holders of 75% of the voting power of all stock of this corporation entitled to vote
in elections of directors shall be required to amend, alter, change, or repeal Article FIFTH, SEVENTH, EIGHTH, NINTH, ELEVENTH, TWELFTH,
FOURTEENTH and FIFTEENTH of this Certificate of Incorporation.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Kelly Services, Inc. has caused this Restated Certificate of Incorporation to be signed by Daniel T. Lis, its Vice President and
Corporate Secretary this 16th day of September, 2003.
 

KELLY SERVICES, INC.

By
 

/s/ Daniel T. Lis

  Daniel T. Lis
  Vice President and Corporate Secretary



1
 

Exhibit 3.2
 KELLY SERVICES, INC.
 

 B Y L A W S
 

 ARTICLE I
OFFICES

 
Section 1. The registered office shall be in the County of New Castle, State of Delaware.

 
Section 2. The corporation may also have offices at such other places both within and without the State of Delaware as the board of directors may from

time to time determine or the business of the corporation may require.
 

ARTICLE II
STOCKHOLDERS

 
Section 1. All meetings of the stockholders for the election of directors shall be held at such place either within or without the State of Delaware as shall be

designated from time to time by the board of directors and stated in the notice of the meeting. Meetings of stockholders for any other purpose may be held at such
time and place, within or without the State of Delaware, as shall be stated in the notice of the meeting or in a duly executed waiver of notice thereof.
 

Section 2. Annual meetings of stockholders shall be held on such date and at such time as shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors
and stated in the notice of the meeting, at which stockholders shall elect by a plurality vote a board of directors, and transact such other business as may properly
be brought before the meeting.
 

Section 3. The Secretary of the corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the
stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in
the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the meeting, during ordinary business
hours, for a period of at least ten days prior to the meeting at the place where the meeting is to be held. The list shall also be produced and kept at the time and
place of the meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present.
 

Section 4. Special meetings of the stockholders, for any purpose or purposes, may be called by the Chairman of the board of directors, the Chief Executive
Officer, the board of directors or by a committee of the board of directors which has been duly designated and empowered by the board of directors. Such special
meetings may not be called by any other person or persons.
 

Section 5. The Secretary or any Assistant Secretary shall cause written notice of the place, date and hour of each meeting of the stockholders, and, in the
case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which such meeting is called, to be given, not less than ten nor more than sixty days prior to the meeting, to
each stockholder of record entitled to vote at such meeting. Such further notice shall be given as may be required by law.
 

Section 6. No notice of any meeting of stockholders need be given to any stockholder who submits a signed waiver of notice, whether before or after the
meeting, provided however, that any actions taken at a meeting shall not be effective until all required waivers are signed and received by the corporation.
Waivers of notice may specify a time period during which such waivers will apply to any and all meetings held. No waiver of notice that is received by the
corporation more than 30 days after the date of a meeting to which it applies shall be effective for that meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the
purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the stockholders need be specified in a written waiver of notice. The attendance of any stockholder at a meeting of
stockholders shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the stockholder attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the
beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.
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Section 7. The holders of 60% of the stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a
quorum at all meetings of the stockholders for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by statute or by the certificate of incorporation. If,
however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders entitled to vote thereat, present in person or
represented by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be
present or represented. At such adjourned meeting, at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any business may be transacted which might have been
transacted at the meeting as originally notified. If the adjournment is for more than thirty days or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the
adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting.
 

Section 8. When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of the holders of a majority of the stock having voting power present in person or represented
by proxy shall decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the question is one which by express provision of the statutes or of the certificate of
incorporation, a different vote is required in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question.
 

Section 9. Each stockholder shall at every meeting of the stockholders be entitled to one vote in person or by proxy appointed by an instrument in writing
subscribed by such stockholder for each share of the capital stock having voting power held by such stockholder, but no proxy shall be voted on after three years
from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period.
 

Section 10. No action required or permitted to be taken at any annual meeting or special meeting of the stockholders of this corporation may be taken
without a meeting and the power of the stockholders to consent in writing, without a meeting, to the taking of any action is specifically denied.
 

ARTICLE III
DIRECTORS

 
Section 1. The number of directors constituting the whole board shall be no fewer than five (5) and no more than nine (9), which number shall be fixed, and

may be modified from time to time, by resolution of the board of directors, but in no event shall the number of directors be less than five (5). The directors shall
be elected as provided in Section 2 of this Article. The directors shall be classified with respect to the term for which they shall severally hold office by dividing
them into three classes, as nearly equal in number as may be, the classes to hold office for successive terms of three years, respectively, but all directors shall hold
office until their successors are elected and qualified.
 

Section 2. Vacancies and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors may be filled by a majority of the
directors then in office, though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, and a director so chosen shall hold office until the next annual election of the
class for which such director shall have been chosen and until a successor is duly elected and qualifies, unless sooner displaced. If there are no directors in office,
then an election of directors may be held in the manner provided by statute.
 

Section 3. The business of the corporation shall be managed by the board of directors which shall have and exercise full power in the management and
conduct of the business and affairs of the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute or by the certificate of incorporation or by these
bylaws directed or required to be exercised or done by the stockholders.
 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 

Section 4. The board of directors of the corporation may hold meetings, both regular and special, either within or without the State of Delaware.
 

Section 5. Immediately following and at the place of holding the annual meeting of stockholders, the board of directors, as constituted upon final
adjournment of such annual meeting, shall convene for the purpose of electing officers and transacting any other business properly brought before it. No notice of
such meeting to the newly elected directors shall be necessary in order legally to constitute the meeting, provided a quorum shall be present.
 

Section 6. Regular meetings of the board of directors may be held without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be determined by
the board.
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Section 7. Special meetings of the board may be called by the Chairman of the board or by the Chief Executive Officer on one day’s notice to each director.
Special meetings shall be called by the Chairman of the board or by the Chief Executive Officer or Secretary on like notice on the written request of a majority of
the directors then in office.
 

Section 8. At all meetings of the board of directors a majority of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority
of the directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the board of directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by
statute or by the certificate of incorporation. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of the board of directors, the directors present thereat may adjourn the
meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.
 

Section 9. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the
board of directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in
writing, and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the board or committee.
 

COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS
 

Section 10. The board of directors shall, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole board, designate such committees of the board as may be required
by a governmental agency having jurisdiction over the affairs of the corporation or by any securities exchange on which securities issued by the corporation may
be listed, and the board of directors may, by resolution passed by majority of the whole board, designate one or more additional committees, each committee to
consist of two or more of the directors of the corporation. The board may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may
replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. Any such committee, to the extent provided by applicable law, rule or regulation or in
the resolution, shall have and may exercise the powers of the board of directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation. Such committee
or committees shall have such name or names as may be determined from time to time by resolution adopted by the board of directors and committee or
committees may, subject to approval by the board of directors, adopt a charter governing the conduct of the affairs of the committee, but no such committee shall
have the power or authority in reference to the following matters: (i) approving or adopting, or recommending to the stockholders, any action or matter expressly
required by the General Corporation Law of Delaware to be submitted to stockholders for approval or (ii) adopting, amending or repealing any bylaw of the
corporation.
 

Section 11. Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its meetings and report the same to the board of directors when required.
 

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS
 

Section 12. The amount, if any, which each director who is not an officer or employee of the corporation shall be entitled to receive as compensation for his
or her services, and the form thereof, shall be fixed from time to time by resolution of the board of directors, and may vary within that group from one director,
class of directors, or category of directors to another, provided however, that any person who is an officer or employee of the corporation shall not receive any
form of compensation for serving as a director of the corporation.
 

ARTICLE IV
NOTICES

 
Section 1. Whenever, under the provisions of the statutes or of the certificate of incorporation or of these bylaws, notice is required to be given to any

director or stockholder, it shall not be construed to mean personal notice only, but such notice may be given personally or in writing, by mail, addressed to such
director or stockholder, at his or her address as it appears on the records of the corporation, with postage thereon prepaid, and such notice shall be deemed to be
given at the time when the same shall be deposited in the United States mail. Notice to directors may also be given by facsimile communication. Notice may also
be given to stockholders by a form of electronic transmission in accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section 232 of the General Corporation Law of
Delaware.
 

Section 2. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the statutes or of the certificate of incorporation or of these bylaws, a waiver
thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to said notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent thereto.
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ARTICLE V
OFFICERS

 
Section 1. The board of directors shall elect a Secretary of the board of directors and it may, if it so determines, choose a Chairman of the board of directors

from among its members. The board of directors may also choose a President of the corporation, one or more Vice Presidents (who may be designated as Vice
Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents or Executive Vice Presidents), and a Treasurer. The corporation may have such additional or assistant officers as the board of
directors, Chief Executive Officer or Chief Operating Officer may deem necessary for its business and may appoint from time to time.
 

Section 2. The board of directors shall designate an officer as the Chief Executive Officer, and shall have the authority, but shall not be required, to
designate officers as the Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Financial Officer or similar such titles. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.
 

Section 3. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the board of directors, and shall have such other powers as the board may determine. If a director
has not been designated as Chairman, or if the designated Chairman is not present, the board of directors shall designate, from time to time, a chairman from
amongst its members to serve as chairman of each meeting of the board of directors.
 

DUTIES
 

Section 4. Subject to direction and under the supervision of the board of directors, the Chief Executive Officer shall have general control of the affairs of
the corporation.
 

Section 5. The salaries of all officers and agents of the corporation shall be fixed by the Chief Executive Officer subject to revision by the board of
directors.
 

Section 6. Each officer other than the Chief Executive Officer shall have the authority and shall perform the duties set forth in these bylaws or, to the extent
consistent with the bylaws, the duties prescribed by the board of directors, by the Chief Executive Officer, or by an officer authorized by the board of directors to
prescribe the duties of such officer. Any designation of duties by the Chief Executive Officer or other officer shall be subject to review by the board of directors
but shall be in full force and effect in the absence of such review.
 

REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION
 

Section 7. Any officer elected or appointed by the board of directors may be removed at any time either with or without cause by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the board of directors. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the corporation shall be filled by the board of directors.
 

Section 8. Any director or officer may resign at any time, and if made in writing, the resignation is to be deemed accepted and effective from the time of its
receipt by the corporation, unless some later time be fixed in the resignation, and then from that time.
 

ARTICLE VI
CERTIFICATES OF STOCK

 
Section 1. Every holder of stock in the corporation shall be entitled to have a certificate, signed by, or in the name of the corporation by, the Chairman of

the board of directors or a President or a Vice President or the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer, or the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the corporation,
under the seal of the corporation, certifying the number of shares owned by such stockholder in the corporation.
 

Section 2. Where a certificate is countersigned (1) by a transfer agent other than the corporation or its employee, and, (2) by a registrar other than the
corporation or its employee, the signatures of the officers of the corporation may be facsimiles. In case any officer who has signed or whose facsimile signature
has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such officer before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the corporation with the same effect as
if he or she were such officer at the date of issue.



5
 

LOST CERTIFICATES
 

Section 3. The board of directors may direct a new certificate or certificates to be issued in place of any certificate or certificates theretofore issued by the
corporation alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of the fact by the person claiming the certificate of stock to be lost,
stolen or destroyed. When authorizing such issue of a new certificate or certificates, the board of directors may, in its discretion and as a condition precedent to
the issuance thereof, require the owner of such lost, stolen or destroyed certificate or certificates, or such owner’s legal representative, to advertise the same in
such manner as it shall require and/or to give the corporation a bond in such sum as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against the
corporation with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed.
 

TRANSFERS OF STOCK
 

Section 4. Upon surrender to the corporation or the transfer agent of the corporation of a certificate for shares duly endorsed or accompanied by proper
evidence of succession, assignment or authority to transfer, it shall be the duty of the corporation to issue a new certificate to the person entitled thereto, cancel
the old certificate and record the transaction upon its books.
 

FIXING RECORD DATE
 

Section 5. In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment
thereof, or entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change,
conversion or exchange of stock or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the board of directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which shall not be more
than sixty nor less than ten days before the date of such meeting, nor more than sixty days prior to any other action. In no event shall such record date precede the
date of the resolution establishing it. A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any
adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the board of directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.
 

REGISTERED STOCKHOLDERS
 

Section 6. The corporation shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends,
and to vote as such owner, and to hold liable for calls and assessments a person registered on its books as the owner of shares, and shall not be bound to recognize
any equitable or other claim to interest in such share or shares on the part of any other person, whether or not it shall have express or other notice hereof, except
as otherwise provided by the laws of Delaware.
 

ARTICLE VII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

DIVIDENDS
 

Section 1. Dividends upon the common stock of the corporation, subject to the provisions of the certificate of incorporation, if any, may be declared by the
board of directors at any regular or special meeting, pursuant to law. Dividends may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the common stock, subject to the
provisions of the certificate of incorporation.
 

Section 2. Before payment of any dividend, there may be set aside out of any funds of the corporation available for dividends such sum or sums as the
directors from time to time, in their absolute discretion, think proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for repairing or
maintaining any property of the corporation, or for such other purpose as the directors shall think conducive to the interest of the corporation, and the directors
may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.
 

ANNUAL STATEMENT
 

Section 3. The board of directors shall present at each annual meeting a full and clear statement of the business and condition of the corporation.
 

CHECKS AND NOTES
 

Section 4. All checks or demands for money of the corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the board of
directors may from time to time designate. The notes of the corporation shall be signed by at least two of the officers of the corporation appointed by the board of
directors.
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FISCAL YEAR
 

Section 5. The fiscal year of the corporation shall end at the close of business on the Sunday nearest December 31.
 

SEAL
 

Section 6. The corporate seal shall be circular in form and contain around its circumference the full corporate name of the corporation and the state of
incorporation and in the center the words “Corporate Seal” and the year of incorporation. The seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be
impressed or affixed or reproduced or otherwise.
 

INDEMNIFICATION
 

Section 7. A director or officer, or former director or officer, of the corporation, or any person who may have served at its request as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, and such person’s heirs, executors, and administrators, shall be
indemnified by the corporation against all expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred
by such person in connection with any action, suit or proceeding whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of
the corporation) to which he or she may be made a party by reason of any alleged acts or omissions as such director or officer if such person acted in good faith
and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation and, with respect to any criminal action or
proceeding, such person had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful.
 

Section 8. A director or officer, or former director or officer, of the corporation, or any person who may have served at its request as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, and such person’s heirs, executors, and administrators, shall be
indemnified by the corporation against all expenses (including attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with any threatened,
pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of any alleged acts or omissions as such
director or officer if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation,
and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the
corporation unless and only to the extent that the Court of Chancery or the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that
despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all of the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses
which the Court of Chancery or such other court shall deem proper.
 

Section 9. To the extent that a director or officer of the corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or
proceeding referred to in Section 7 or 8 of this Article VII, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she shall be indemnified against expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith.
 

Section 10. Expenses incurred by a director or officer, former director or officer, or such person’s heirs, executors and administrators in defending a civil or
criminal action shall be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on
behalf of such director or officer, or such person’s heirs, executors or administrators to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is not
entitled to be indemnified by the corporation.
 

Section 11. The foregoing rights of indemnification and advancement of expenses shall be in addition to and not exclusive of any and all other rights to
which such director or officer, or former director or officer, or such person’s heirs, executors or administrators might be entitled as a matter of law.
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ARTICLE VIII
AMENDMENTS

 
Section 1. Subject to the provisions of statute, the bylaws of the corporation may be adopted, amended or repealed by the affirmative vote of a majority of

the total number of directors or by the affirmative vote of holders of 75% of the voting power of all of the stock of this corporation entitled to vote in elections of
directors, provided, however, that no bylaw or bylaws fixing the qualifications, classifications or term of office of any member or members of the then existing
board of directors shall be made or altered during the term of office of the then existing board of directors. The bylaws may contain any provision for the
regulation and management of the affairs of the corporation and the rights or powers of its stockholders, directors, officers, or employees not inconsistent with the
laws of the State of Delaware.
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Exhibit 10.2
 KELLY SERVICES, INC.

PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN
 (As Amended and Restated by Action of the Board of Directors)

(March 29, 1996)
 As Amended:

July 29, 2003
April 14, 2000

 
Section 1 — Purposes
 This KELLY SERVICES, INC. PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN (the “Plan”) provides for long-term incentive compensation to certain key officers
and employees of Kelly Services, Inc. (the “Company”) or any Affiliated Entity, based upon such officers’ and employees’ contributions to the long-term growth
and profitability of the Company. Long-term incentives encourage identification with stockholder concerns, as well as current and continuing interest in the
development and financial success of the Company. The Plan is also intended to assist the Company and Affiliated Entities in attracting and retaining officers and
employees of superior ability and promise.
 
Section 2 — Certain Additional Definitions and Rules of Construction
 (a) The terms set forth in quotation marks below have the following meanings under the Plan:
 “Additional Shares” means immediately vested shares of Company Stock awarded pursuant to Section 9(c) of the Plan.
 “Affiliated Entity” means a corporation, partnership or other business enterprise in which the Company directly or indirectly has a significant equity

interest under United States generally accepted accounting principles.
 “Award” means a Restricted Award, Performance Award, award of Additional Shares, Option, SAR or Foreign Award granted under the Plan.
 “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 “Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board (or, if no Board committee so named is in existence at a relevant time, such other

Board committee as the Board shall have specified), which Board committee shall have at least two members, none of the members of which shall be
eligible to receive any Award while serving on such committee (nor shall any member have received any Award at any time within one year prior to
appointment to such committee), and all members of which shall otherwise be “disinterested persons” as that term is used in Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 16b-3 (or any successor provision in effect at the time).

 “Company Stock” means the Class A Common Stock, $1.00 par value, of the Company.
 “Deferred Compensation Plan” means a plan of the Company or an Affiliated Entity which permits an Employee granted an Award of Share Units

voluntarily to defer receipt of stock that otherwise would be payable in settlement of the Award, the terms of which plan satisfy any and all conditions
necessary to be satisfied to facilitate exemption of all compensation payable in connection with Performance Share Unit Awards from the deduction limit
imposed by Section 162(m).

 “Disabled” means the total and permanent inability of an Employee by reason of sickness or injury to perform the material duties of such Employee’s
regular occupation with his or her Employer where such inability has existed for at least six continuous months.

 “Disability” means the condition of being Disabled.
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“Employee” means an employee of the Company or an Affiliated Entity.
 “Employer” means the Company or the Affiliated Entity which employs an Employee at any given time.
 “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
 “Fair Market Value” means (1) as of any given date on which Company Stock is authorized for quotation in the National Association of Securities

Dealers, Inc. Automated Quotation System (“NASDAQ”) as a NASDAQ National Market System Security, the closing sale price for a share of Company
Stock reported by NASDAQ for such date (or, if no sale is so reported for such date, for the latest preceding date on which such a sale was so reported) and
(2) as of any other given date, the fair market value of a share of Company Stock as determined in good faith by the Committee.

 “Foreign Award” means an award granted pursuant to Section 10 of the Plan.
 “Incentive Stock Option” or “ISO” means an Option that meets the requirements of Section 422 of the Code (or any successor provision in effect at a

relevant time) and that is identified as intended to be an ISO in the written agreement evidencing the Option.
 “Nonqualified Stock Option” or “NQSO” means an Option that is not an ISO.
 “Option” means an Option to purchase Company Stock granted pursuant to Section 6 of the Plan.
 “Over-10% Owner” means an owner of over 10% of the total combined outstanding voting power of all classes of capital stock of the Company.
 “Performance Award” means an award of Performance Shares or Performance Share Units.
 “Performance Shares” and “Performance Share Units” mean, respectively, shares of Company Stock and Share Units granted under Section 9 of the

Plan which, until vested, are subject to forfeiture.
 “Restoration Option” has the meaning set forth in Section 6(f) of the Plan.
 “Restricted Award” means an award of Restricted Shares or Restricted Share Units.
 “Restricted Shares” and “Restricted Share Units” mean, respectively, shares of Company Stock and Share Units granted under Section 8 of the Plan

which, until vested, are subject to forfeiture.
 “Rule 16b-3” means Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 16b-3, as amended.
 “Section 16 Reporting Person” means a person required by Section 16 of the Exchange Act and related rules to file reports concerning such person’s

ownership of and transactions in Company equity securities.
 “Section 162(m)” means Section 162(m) of the Code (or such successor section as may be in effect at a given time), together with the regulations of

the U.S. Department of the Treasury promulgated thereunder.
 “Senior Executive Officer” means an Employee who is an officer of the Company at or above the rank of Vice President.
 “Share Unit” means a unit available for award under the Plan which: (1) upon vesting or payout, shall entitle the holder to receive from the Company

for each Share Unit vested or paid, a share of Company Stock, and (2) until settled after vesting, or until forfeited, shall entitle the holder to be paid by the
Company in cash, as and when the same is paid to holders of Company Stock, the equivalent of any cash dividend on Company Stock to which the holder
would have been entitled if, on the date of grant of such Share Unit, the grantee of the Share Unit has instead been granted a Restricted Share or
Performance Share.



3
 

“Stock Appreciation Right” or “SAR” means a right granted pursuant to Section 7 of the Plan which, upon exercise, shall entitle the holder to receive
from the Company the Fair Market Value of a share of Company Stock on the exercise date, minus the Fair Market Value of such a share on the date of
grant of the Option to which such right is related.

 
(b) All references herein to the “issuance” of shares, to shares “issued” or “issuable,” and the like, are intended to include transfers of previously issued

shares held in the treasury of the Company (“treasury shares”), as well as new issuances of authorized but previously unissued shares as determined from time to
time by the Board.
 
Section 3 — Administration
 The Plan shall be administered by the Committee which, subject to such limitations as are expressly set forth in the Plan, shall, by majority vote, grant
Awards and determine the type, amount and other terms and conditions of each Award. The Committee shall have authority to prescribe the forms of written
agreements to evidence Awards, to interpret the Plan and the provisions of such agreements, to adopt administrative rules and procedures concerning
administration of the Plan and to take such other action as it determines to be necessary, advisable, appropriate or convenient for the administration of the Plan in
accordance with its purposes. The Committee may delegate to the chief executive officer of the Company, if also a director, some or all of its authority to grant
Awards under the Plan to Employees who are not Section 16 Reporting Persons, in which case actions taken by the chief executive officer pursuant to such
delegated authority shall have the same effect as if taken by the Committee. The Committee may delegate performance of record-keeping and other ministerial
functions concerning the Plan and its day-to-day operations to such persons as it may specify from time to time.
 
Section 4 — Eligibility for Awards; No Requirement of Uniformity
 Any type of Award may be granted to any Employee at any time, except that Foreign Awards may only be granted to such Employees as are permissible
grantees under Section 10 of the Plan. The type, amount and other terms and conditions of an Award made to a grantee at any given time need not be the same as
for any other Award granted then or at any other time to the same or any other grantee.
 
Section 5 — Maximum Number of Shares
 At any given time, the maximum number of shares of Company Stock which may be issued as Restricted Shares or Units, Performance Shares or Units,
Additional Shares or similar Foreign Awards and made subject to future issuance in settlement of Options (whether or not with related SARs), Share Units or
Foreign Awards shall be 10% of the number of shares of Company Stock that were outstanding (exclusive of treasury shares) as of the end of the immediately
preceding Company fiscal year (rounded downward, if necessary to eliminate fractional shares),
 

(a) minus the sum of:
 (1) the number of shares awarded as Restricted Shares, Performance Shares or Additional Shares during the period consisting of the immediately

preceding four complete fiscal years of the Company and its then-current fiscal year to date (the “Adjustment Period”);
 (2) the number of Share Units awarded during the Adjustment Period;
 (3) the number of shares made subject to Options granted (including Restoration Options arising) during the Adjustment Period; and
 (4) the total number of shares issued as Foreign Awards, and the maximum number of shares which in the future may be issued in settlement of

Foreign Awards, granted during the Adjustment Period,
 

(b) plus the sum of:
 (1) the number of shares as to which Options have expired or terminated during the Adjustment Period for any reason other than exercise of such

Options or of related SARs:
 (2) the number of shares as to which Restricted Awards and Performance Awards granted during the Adjustment Period have since been forfeited and

not vested; and
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(3) the number of shares transferred to the Company (actually or constructively) to satisfy the exercise price of an outstanding Option during the
Adjustment Period.

 
In addition to the foregoing, in no event may the total number of shares covered by outstanding ISOs plus the number of shares issued in settlement of

exercised ISOs, whenever granted, exceed 4,000,000 shares.
 

Any stock options, SARs or other equity-based awards assumed by the Company in a merger or acquisition of another company shall not count against the
shares available for Award under the Plan.
 
Section 6 — Options
 (a) Incentive Stock Options and Nonqualified Stock Options. At the time of grant of an Option, it shall be specified whether it is intended to be an Incentive
Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock Option, and the agreement evidencing such Option shall designate the Option accordingly. In connection with the grant of
any Option intended to be an ISO, the Committee may prescribe such terms and conditions, other than those specified in the Plan, as it deems desirable to qualify
the Option as an incentive stock option under the Code. If for any reason an Option (or any portion thereof) intended by the Committee to be an ISO nevertheless
does not so qualify, either at the time of grant or subsequently, such failure to qualify shall not invalidate the Option (or such portion), and instead the
nonqualified portion (or, if necessary, the entire Option) shall be deemed to have been granted as a Nonqualified Stock Option irrespective of the manner in which
it is designated in the Option agreement.
 

(b) Number of Shares and Exercisability. The number of shares subject to an Option, the time at which the Option or any portion thereof first becomes
exercisable (which time may, but need not, be coincident with the date of grant) and the latest date on which the Option may be exercised (the “expiration date”)
shall be as specified at the time of grant; provided, however, that the expiration date for any ISO granted to an Over-10% Owner may be no later than five years,
and the expiration date for any other Option may be no later than ten years, after the date of grant of the Option and provided further that the maximum number of
shares which may be granted as Options (whether or not in tandem with SARs) during any consecutive five calendar years to any single Employee shall be
750,000, subject to adjustment under Section 12 of the Plan. The Committee may, in its discretion, accelerate the exercisability of any Option (or Option portion)
at any time or provide for automatic acceleration of exercisability of any Option (or portion) upon the occurrence of such events as it may specify, except that no
acceleration of exercisability of an ISO or any portion thereof shall be effective without the consent of the Option holder if such acceleration would cause the ISO
or any other ISO of such holder (or any portion thereof) to become a Nonqualified Stock Option. During the lifetime of the grantee of an Option, the Option may
be exercised only by the grantee or the grantee’s legal representative.
 

(c) Exercise Price. Unless a higher price is specified at the time of grant, the per share exercise price of each Option shall be the Fair Market Value of a
share of Company Stock on the date of grant, except that the per share exercise price of any ISO granted to an Over-10% Owner shall be at least equal to 110% of
such Fair Market Value on the grant date.
 

(d) Exercise Procedures and Payment. The holder of an exercisable Option (or Option portion) may exercise it in whole or in part by complying with such
procedures for exercise as are then in effect and tendering payment in full of the aggregate exercise price for the number of shares in respect of which the Option
is then being exercised. Except to the extent further restricted or limited at the time of grant, payment may be made (1) entirely in cash or (2) by delivery of whole
shares of Company Stock owned by the Option holder and the balance in cash. Shares delivered in payment shall be valued at their Fair Market Value on the date
of delivery.
 

(e) Effect of Termination of Employment upon Options Granted to Employees. At the time Options are granted, the Committee shall establish provisions for
the exercisability of Options following termination of employment. Such provisions shall include the period of time, if any, after termination of employment
during which Options shall be exercisable and whether or not Options which have not yet vested shall be exercisable. No Option shall be exercisable after its
expiration date or, if earlier, the tenth anniversary of its date of grant and any exercise following termination of employment shall be subject to the provision of
Section 11(c).
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(f) Restoration Options. At the time of grant of an Option (for purposes of this paragraph an “original Option”) that is not itself a Restoration Option (as
hereinafter defined), or at the time a Restoration Option arises, or at any other time while the grantee continues to be eligible for Awards and the original or
Restoration Option (the “prior Option”) is outstanding, the Committee may provide that the prior Option also shall carry with it a right to receive another Option
(a “Restoration Option”) if, earlier than six months before the expiration date of the prior Option, the grantee exercises the prior Option (or a portion thereof)
while still an Employee and pays all or some of the relevant exercise price in shares of Company Stock that have been owned by the grantee for at least six
months prior to exercise. In addition to any other terms and conditions (including additional limitations on exercisability) that the Committee deems appropriate,
each Restoration Option shall be subject to the following:
 (1) the number of shares subject to the Restoration Option shall be the lesser of (i) the number of whole shares delivered in exercise of the prior

Option or (ii) the number of shares of Company Stock which may be made subject to future issuance in settlement of Options pursuant to Section 5 of the
Plan and the per person grant limits set forth in Section 6(b) at the time the Restoration Option arises;

 (2) the Restoration Option automatically shall arise and be granted (if ever) at the time of payment of the relevant exercise price in respect of the
prior Option;

 (3) the per share exercise price of the Restoration Option shall be the Fair Market Value of a share of Company Stock on the date the Restoration
Option arises;

 (4) the expiration date of the Restoration Option shall be the same as that of the prior Option;
 (5) the Restoration Option shall first become exercisable six months after it arises; and
 (6) the Restoration Option shall be a Nonqualified Stock Option.
 
Section 7 — Stock Appreciation Rights
 (a) Grant, Exercisability and Termination. At the time of grant of an Option, or at any time while the Option is outstanding and the Option holder continues
to be eligible to receive Awards, Stock Appreciation Rights may be granted to the holder with respect to some or all of the shares covered by the Option. The only
persons entitled to exercise such SARs shall be the holder of the related Option or such holder’s legal representative, and the expiration date of such SARs shall
be the same as that of the related Option. SARs shall be exercisable if (and only if) and to the extent that the related Option is then exercisable, except that SARs
shall not be exercisable by a Section 16 Reporting Person at any time within six months after the date on which the SARs were granted even if the related Option
is then exercisable. Exercise of SARs shall automatically terminate the related Option with respect to that number of shares which equals the number of SARs
being exercised, and exercise, cancellation or termination of an Option shall automatically terminate that number of related SARs which equals the number of
shares with respect to which the Option is being exercised, canceled or terminated.
 

(b) Exercise Procedures and Settlement Elections. Exercisable SARs may be exercised at any time in accordance with such exercise procedures as are then
in effect. Except to the extent further restricted at the time of grant, at or prior to exercise of SARs, the holder may elect to have the exercised SARs settled (1)
entirely in cash, (2) to the extent possible, in whole shares of Company Stock and the balance in cash, or (3) partially in cash in an amount specified by the holder
and the balance in whole shares of Company Stock plus cash in lieu of any fractional share. If no election is made, the SARs shall be settled in any of the
foregoing manners as the Committee shall determine. For purposes of settlement, shares of Company Stock shall be valued as of the settlement date.
 
Section 8 — Restricted Awards
 (a) Restriction Period. At the time of grant of a Restricted Award, the Committee shall establish a period of no less than twelve months with respect to such
Restricted Award, which period (the “restriction period”) shall commence as of the date of grant.
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(b) Vesting and Forfeiture. If the grantee of a Restricted Award remains an Employee throughout the applicable restriction period, the entire Restricted
Award shall be fully vested and no longer subject to forfeiture as of the end of the restriction period. If the grantee ceases to be an Employee at any time during
the restriction period due to death or Disability (or, due to retirement with the Employer’s consent), that percentage of the total number of Restricted Shares
and/or Restricted Share Units comprising such Award which equals the percentage of the entire restriction period by then elapsed shall be vested, and the
remainder of such Award shall be forfeited, unless the Committee determines to waive such forfeiture, in which event the entire Restricted Award shall be vested.
If the grantee otherwise ceases to be an Employee during the restriction period, the entire Restricted Award shall be forfeited, except that, if the Committee
determines that such waiver is in the Company’s best interests, the Committee may waive forfeiture and thereby vest a portion of the Award (but in no event more
than automatically would have vested if the grantee had died).
 

(c) Other Matters. Restricted Shares comprising a Restricted Award shall be issued to the grantee as promptly as practicable after grant of the Restricted
Award, but the certificates representing such Restricted Shares shall bear an appropriate legend and shall be held by the Company, and any and all non-cash
dividends or other distributions upon such Restricted Shares shall be retained and held by the Company, pending vesting or forfeiture of such Restricted Shares.
Such retained non-cash dividends and other distributions upon a Restricted Share thereafter shall be vested or forfeited, as the case may be, upon the vesting or
forfeiture of such Restricted Share and, in the case of non-cash dividends and other distributions which vest, shall be distributed to the holder of the Restricted
Shares as promptly as practicable after the vesting date. Subject to the Plan’s limitations on available shares, and except to the extent further limited by the
Committee in connection with a given Award of Restricted Share Units (which limitations may be imposed by the Committee at the time of grant of the Award or
at any other time while the Award is unvested and the grantee is still an Employee), an Award of Restricted Share Units which vests shall be settled in cash, whole
shares of Company Stock (valued at their Fair Market as of the settlement date), or a combination thereof, as the Committee shall determine. The holder of any
Award of Restricted Share Units who is eligible to participate in a Deferred Compensation Plan may make an advance election, in accordance with the terms of
such Deferred Compensation Plan, to defer settlement of any portion of his or her Restricted Share Unit Award that thereafter becomes payable in stock;
otherwise, Restricted Share Units which vest shall be settled in full as soon as practicable after the vesting date.
 
Section 9A — Performance Awards and Additional Shares in General
 (a) Performance Period and Goals. At the time of grant of a Performance Award, the Committee shall establish a period of not less than one year nor more
than five years with respect to such Performance Award, which period (the “performance period”) shall commence as of the first day of the Company fiscal year
in which such Award is granted, if it is granted during the first fiscal quarter of such fiscal year, and otherwise shall commence as of the date of grant. At the time
of grant of the Performance Award, the Committee also shall establish one or more business performance goals for the applicable performance period and, if more
than one has been established, the weight to be given each such goal (collectively, “performance goals”). The performance goals initially established with respect
to a Performance Award may be modified and adjusted during the performance period in light of previously unforeseen transactions, events or circumstances
occurring after the initial performance goals are established.
 

(b) Vesting and Forfeiture. As soon as practicable following the end of the performance period for a Performance Award, the Committee shall determine
the extent to which the performance goals for that Award were attained. If the Committee determines that the performance goals have been fully attained, and if
the grantee of the Performance Award has remained an Employee throughout the performance period and up to the first anniversary of the grant date occurring
after the end of the performance period (the “Grant Anniversary”), the entire Performance Award shall, upon such determination, be fully vested and no longer
subject to forfeiture. If the grantee has remained an Employee throughout the performance period and to the Grant Anniversary but the Committee determines that
the performance goals were only partially met, or were not met, the Committee nevertheless may determine to permit vesting of all or a portion of the
Performance Award, whereupon such Award or portion shall be vested, but any portion of the Award not so vested shall be forfeited. If the grantee ceases to be an
Employee at any time during the performance period or through the Grant Anniversary, the consequences thereof shall be the same as if the Performance Award
had been a Restricted Award and the performance period a restriction period.
 

(c) Additional Shares. Following the end of the performance period, the Committee may recommend a grant of Additional Shares to the grantee of a
Performance Award if the grantee is then an Employee and the Committee determines that satisfaction of the performance goals for such Performance Award so
warrants. Additional Shares awarded to a grantee shall be immediately vested and shall be issued to the grantee as soon as practicable after the grant.
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(d) Other Matters. The provisions of Section 8(c) of the Plan concerning issuance of Restricted Shares, concerning retention of non-cash dividends and
other distributions thereon, and concerning subsequent vesting and distribution, or forfeiture, of such non-cash dividends and other distributions also shall apply
to Performance Shares, and the provisions thereof concerning settlement of Restricted Share Units also shall apply to Performance Share Units.
 
Section 9B — Performance Awards to Senior Executive Officers
 (a) Special Provisions Applicable. In order to facilitate exemption of compensation paid in connection with Performance Awards to Senior Executive
Officers from the tax deduction limit imposed by Section 162(m), the special provisions set forth in this Section 9B shall apply to all such Awards,
notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary. Except as superseded by this Section 9B, all provisions of the Plan applicable to Performance
Awards also shall apply to such Awards granted to Senior Executive Officers.
 

(b) Timing of Grants. Performance Awards may be granted to Senior Executive Officers only during the first quarter of a Company fiscal year.
 

(c) Limits on Award Amounts. Subject to the general limits on Award amounts set forth in Section 5 and the adjustment provisions of Section 12, the
maximum number of Performance Shares and/or Performance Share Units that may be granted to any given Senior Executive Officer with respect to a single
performance period is 25,000.
 

(d) Performance Objectives and Payout Schedules. At or prior to the grant of any Performance Award to a Senior Executive Officer, the Committee shall
establish one or more objectively determinable performance goals for the Award relating to one or more of the following areas of Company performance over the
relevant performance period: earnings per share of Company Stock; revenue growth; operating income; net income, before or after taxes; operating cash flow;
return on revenues, assets or equity; customer or employee retention; or an index of customer satisfaction. At the same time, the Committee shall establish a
“payout” schedule for the Performance Award, which shall range from 100 percent of the Performance Shares and/or Performance Share Units constituting the
Award (if actual Company results for the performance period at least equal the performance goal(s) established) to zero percent of such Award (if actual Company
results for the period do not at least equal a minimum amount or level specified by the Committee) and shall be structured so as to permit objective determination
of payouts over the full range of actual Company results. In connection with establishment of the performance goal(s) for a Performance Award to a Senior
Executive Officer, the Committee shall specify which (if any) types or categories of extraordinary, unusual, non-recurring, or other items or events shall be
excluded or otherwise not taken into account when actual Company results relating to such goal(s) are calculated, and the only adjustments in actual Company
results which thereafter shall be permissible for purposes of applying the established payout schedule for the Performance Award shall be objectively
determinable adjustments for the items or events so specified.
 

(e) No Discretion to Increase Awards or Waive Forfeitures. In connection with the grant of a Performance Award to a Senior Executive Officer, the
Committee may establish other preconditions to payout of the Award, including preconditions the satisfaction of which may call for subjective determinations by
the Committee. In addition, the payout on any Performance Award granted to a Senior Executive Officer as calculated pursuant to the payout schedule established
for the Award may be reduced by the Committee to the extent it deems appropriate if, in the Committee’s judgment, the individual performance of the Senior
Executive Officer during the performance period has not warranted the payout so calculated. However, for so long as Section 162(m) may require, in no event
shall the payout on any Performance Award granted to a Senior Executive Officer exceed the payout permissible under the Award’s payout schedule, and in no
event shall any Additional Shares be granted to any Senior Executive Officer.
 

(f) Effect of Employment Termination. If a Performance Award is granted to a Senior Executive Officer and prior to the third anniversary of the award date
the grantee ceases to be an Employee due to the grantee’s death, Disability, or retirement with the Employer’s consent, that percentage of the total number of
Performance Shares and/or Performance Share Units comprising such Award which equals the percentage of the entire performance period by then elapsed shall
be unaffected by the employment termination and the unaffected portion of the Award subsequently shall vest or be forfeited or canceled in accordance with the
payout schedule, any preconditions, and the provisions of the Plan applicable to the original Award. Except as provided in the preceding sentence, if the grantee
of a Performance Award, granted while a Senior Executive Officer, ceases to be an Employee before the Grant Anniversary, the entire Award shall be forfeited.
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(g) Stockholder Approval Requirements. Those aspects of the Plan concerning Performance Awards to Senior Executive Officers for which stockholder
approval is required under Section 162(m) shall be disclosed to and submitted for approval by the Company’s stockholders at its 1996 annual meeting, and any
grants of Performance Awards to Senior Executive Officers occurring prior to such meeting shall be subject to such approval and shall be canceled and of no
effect if such approval is not obtained. If such approval is obtained, those aspects of the Plan concerning subsequent grants of Performance Awards to Senior
Executive Officers for which additional stockholder approval may become required under Section 162(m) also shall be disclosed to and submitted for approval by
the Company’s stockholders as and to the extent so required. In no event may any Performance Award be granted to a Senior Executive Officer unless, either any
and all of such stockholder approval requirements as Section 162(m) then would impose concerning the Award already have been satisfied, or the Award is
granted subject to such approval. The term of the performance-based Performance Share Award criteria under the Plan as herein amended and restated, assuming
approval by the stockholders, will be for five years of awards, 1996 through 2000, unless soon terminated or amended by the Board. Any amendment that would
materially change the “class of employees” covered, the “performance measure” or individual award maximum would be subject to further stockholder approval.
 
Section 10 — Foreign Awards
 The Committee may modify the terms of any type of Award described in Section 6, 7, 8 or 9A of the Plan for grant to an Employee who is subject to tax or
similar laws of a country other than the United States and may grant such modified Award, and structure and grant other types of awards related to appreciation in
value of Company Stock, to such an Employee, to the extent that the Committee determines that doing so is necessary or advisable in order to provide such
grantee with benefits and incentives comparable (to the extent practically possible) to those which would be provided the grantee by an Award under Section 6, 7,
8 or 9A if the grantee were not subject to such foreign laws.
 
Section 11 — Certain Provisions Generally Applicable to Awards
 (a) Award Agreements. Each Award granted under the Plan (other than any award of Additional Shares and any similar Foreign Award unless the
Committee otherwise determines) shall be evidenced by a written agreement setting forth (including, to the extent appropriate, by incorporating applicable
provisions of the Plan) the type, amount and other terms and conditions of such Award, including, in addition to such terms and conditions as are expressly
required to be determined by the Committee, all such other terms and conditions not inconsistent with the Plan as the Committee shall have specified with respect
to such Award.
 

(b) Transfer Restrictions; Potential Forfeiture. No Option or SAR, no unvested Performance Award or Restricted Award, no Foreign Award similar to any
of the foregoing, and none of the rights or privileges conferred by any such Award may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise transferred in any
manner whatsoever, except that, if the Committee determines that such transfer will not violate any requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission or
the Internal Revenue Service, the Committee may permit an intervivos transfer by gift to or for the benefit of a family member of the grantee. Any attempt to sell,
assign, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise transfer any such Award or any of the rights and privileges conferred thereby contrary to the provisions of the Plan shall
be void and unenforceable against the Company.
 

(c) Overriding Precondition; Potential Forfeiture. It shall be an overriding precondition to the vesting of each Performance Award, Restricted Award and
similar Foreign Award and the exercisability of each Option, SAR and similar Foreign Award: (1) that the grantee of such Award not engage in any activity that,
in the opinion of the Committee, is in competition with any activity of the Company or any Affiliated Entity or otherwise inimical to the best interests of the
Company (except that employment with any entity at the request of the Company and employment that has been specifically approved by the Committee shall not
be considered an activity in competition with or, in itself, otherwise inimical to the Company or any Affiliated Entity) and (2) that the grantee furnish the
Committee with all such information concerning satisfaction of the foregoing condition as the Committee shall reasonably request. If the Committee makes a
determination that a grantee, whether while still an Employee or afterward, has engaged in any such competitive or otherwise inimical activity, such
determination shall operate to immediately cancel all then outstanding Options, SARs and similar Foreign Awards, and as an immediate forfeiture of all then
unvested Restricted Awards, Performance Awards and similar Foreign Awards, theretofore granted to the grantee.
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(d) Tax Withholding. The Committee may make provision for withholding of shares otherwise issuable upon the grant, exercise, vesting or settlement of
Awards, including by permitting grantees or other holders to request or to elect such withholding and/or by permitting grantees or other holders to tender other
shares of Company Stock owned by such grantee or holder (including Additional Shares, vested Performance Shares and vested Restricted Shares), as a means of
satisfying tax withholding obligations arising in connection with the grant, exercise, vesting or settlement of Awards. If the Committee determines to grant the
right to make any such election to a grantee or holder, the Committee may condition, limit or qualify such election right in any manner it deems appropriate.
 

(e) Stockholder Status. Neither the grantee of an Award, nor any other person to whom the Award or the grantee’s rights thereunder may pass, shall be, or
have any rights or privileges of, a holder of shares of Company Stock, in respect of any shares issuable pursuant to or in settlement of such Award, unless and
until certificates representing such shares have been issued in the name of such grantee or other person.
 

(f) No Change in Employment Status. Neither the establishment of the Plan, the eligibility of any Employee to be granted Awards, the grant of any Award to
an Employee, nor any provisions of the Plan or such Award is intended or shall be construed as altering the at-will nature of any Employee’s employment by the
Company or any Affiliated Entity.
 
Section 12 — Adjustments upon Changes in Capitalization
 In the event of a reorganization or recapitalization, merger, consolidation or similar transaction involving the Company, a stock-on-stock dividend or split,
spin-off, reverse split or combination of Company Stock, a rights offering, or any other change in the corporate or capital structure of the Company, the Board
shall make such adjustments as it may deem appropriate in the number and kind of shares available for issuance in the aggregate and to any individual under and
pursuant to the Plan (including in settlement of ISOs), the number and kind of shares covered by outstanding Options and the per share exercise price of such
Options, the numbers of outstanding SARs and Share Units and the terms of Foreign Awards. Any adjustment with respect to an ISO in connection with a
transaction to which Section 424(a) of the Code (or any successor provisions then in effect) applies shall be made in accordance therewith unless the Board
specifically determines otherwise.
 
Section 13 — Effectiveness, Duration, Amendment, Suspension and Termination
 The Plan shall become effective upon approval by the stockholders of the Company entitled to vote thereon, as provided in the Board resolutions adopting
the Plan, and shall continue thereafter until terminated by the Board as hereinafter provided. The Board may amend, suspend or terminate the Plan or any portion
thereof at any time, but no such Board action shall adversely affect the rights of any grantee or other holder of any Award then outstanding or unvested without
the consent of such grantee or holder.
 

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company: March 29, 1996.
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Exhibit 14
 KELLY SERVICES, INC.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Kelly Services, Inc. (“the Company”) has adopted the following Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the
“Code”) for itself and the officers and employees of the Company (the “employees”). The Code is intended to help us recognize and deal with ethical issues, deter
wrongdoing, provide mechanisms to report dishonest or unethical conduct and help foster a culture of honesty and accountability as we collectively work to
achieve our vision as the world’s best staffing services company. Each of us has a personal responsibility to comply with both the letter and the spirit of this Code.
 

No code or policy can anticipate every situation that may arise. This Code is intended to serve as a guide. Employees are encouraged to ask their managers
questions about particular circumstances that may involve the provisions of this Code. Employees also may present their questions to the Head of Internal Audit
or the Secretary of the Governance Committee, who may consult with the General Counsel or outside legal counsel as appropriate.
 
Conflict of Interest
 A “conflict of interest” occurs when our individual private interests interfere, or appear to interfere, in any way with the interests of the Company. Each of
us must avoid conflicts of interest with the Company. Any situation that involves, or may reasonably be expected to involve, a conflict of interest with the
Company must be disclosed immediately to the Head of Internal Audit or the Secretary of the Governance Committee.
 

This Code does not attempt to describe all possible conflicts of interest which could develop. Some of the more common conflicts from which we should
refrain, are:
 
 

•  an employee or a family member receiving an improper personal benefit as a result of the employee’s position with the company. A “family member”
means a spouse, parents, children and siblings, whether by blood, marriage or adoption, or anyone who resides in an employee’s home;

 
 

•  knowingly engaging in any conduct or activity that is inconsistent with the Company’s best interests or that disrupts or impairs the Company’s
relationship with any person or entity with which the Company has or proposes to enter into a business or contractual relationship;

 
 •  accepting compensation, in any form, from any source other than the Company, which affects job performance in any way;
 
 

•  offering, giving or receiving gifts to or from anyone who deals with the Company in cases where the gift is being made to influence our actions in our
position with the Company, or where acceptance of the gifts could create the appearance of an impropriety.

 
Corporate Opportunities
 Each of us has a responsibility to the Company to advance its legitimate interests. We must not:
 
 

•  personally take for ourselves or divert to others opportunities that are discovered through the use of Company property, information or our respective
position;

 
 •  use Company employees, property, information or our respective positions for personal gain; or
 
 •  compete with the Company, directly or indirectly, for business opportunities.
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Confidentiality
 Each of us must maintain the confidentiality of information entrusted to us by the Company and its customers.
 
Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets
 We must each protect the Company’s assets and ensure their efficient use. No one is to use Company assets for personal benefit.
 
Fair Dealing
 We have a responsibility to deal fairly with each other, our customers and our suppliers. No one must take unfair advantage of anyone else through
manipulation, concealment, abuse of confidential information, misrepresentation of material facts or any other unfair dealing practices.
 
Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations
 Each of us shall comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Company, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, antitrust laws and
insider trading laws, and all policies established by the Company.
 
Waivers of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
 Any waiver of this Code as it applies to individual Directors or Executive Officers must be made by the Board of Directors and will be disclosed in
accordance with applicable federal law and NASDAQ rules. Requests for waivers of the Code as it applies to officers and employees must be made in writing to
the Head of Internal Audit or the Secretary of the Governance Committee and must be confirmed in writing.
 
Reporting Dishonest or Unethical Behavior
 When in doubt about the best course of action in a particular situation, employees should talk to their managers or other appropriate personnel. Known or
suspected violations of laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Company, of this Code or any Company policy must be promptly reported in writing to the
Head of Internal Audit or the Secretary of the Governance Committee. Alternatively, anonymous reports of known or suspected violations may be made through
the fraud hotline at 1-877-552-9002. Retaliation of any kind against any Director, officer or employee for reports made in good faith is expressly prohibited and
will result in corrective action, including termination of employment.
 
Public Company Reporting
 The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, the Corporate Controller and their designees (the “senior financial officers”) have the
additional responsibility to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission full, fair, timely and understandable reports and documents; these same disclosure
requirements apply to all of the Company’s public communications. In addition to the reporting requirements set forth elsewhere in this Code the senior financial
officers must report any known or suspected violations of the Code to the Audit Committee.
 
Failure to Comply; Compliance Procedures
 The failure by any Director, officer or employee to comply with the laws, rules or regulations governing the Company’s business, this Code or any
Company policy will constitute grounds for corrective action, up to and including termination of employment or engagement. Reports of known or suspected
violations will be promptly investigated by the appropriate function, which may include Audit, Human Resources or Law.
 
Adopted Board of Directors
February 9, 2004



Exhibit 21
 SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT
 Kelly Services, Inc.
 

Subsidiary

  

State/Jurisdiction
of Incorporation

  

Business Name

Kelly Services (Canada), Ltd.   Canada   Kelly Temporary Services

Kelly Properties, Inc.   Michigan   Kelly Properties

Kelly Staff Leasing, Inc.   California   Kelly Staff Leasing

Kelly Services (Ireland), Ltd.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Properties, Inc.)   

Delaware
  

Kelly Services

Kelly Services (UK), Ltd.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Properties, Inc.)   

United Kingdom
  

Kelly Services

Kelly Home Care Services, Inc.   Delaware   Kelly Home Care Services

Kelly Services (Australia), Ltd.   Delaware   Kelly Temporary Services

Kelly Services (New Zealand), Ltd.   Delaware   Kelly Temporary Services

Kelly Services of Denmark, Inc.   Delaware   Kelly Services

Kelly Services (Nederland), B.V.   The Netherlands   Kelly Uitzendburo

Kelly Administratiekantoor B.V.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services (Nederland) B.V.)   

The Netherlands
  

Kelly Uitzendburo

Kelly Services Norge A.S.   Norway   Kelly Bemanningslosninger

Kelly Services Mexico, S.A. de C.V.   Mexico   Kelly Temporary Services

Outsourcing de Servicios y Manufactura, S.A. de C.V.   Mexico   OSM

QSM, S.A. de C.V.   Mexico   QSM

Kelly Services (Suisse) S.A.   Switzerland   Kelly Services Suisse

Kelly Services France, S.A.   France   Kelly Services France

Kelly Services Interim, S.A.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services France S.A.)   

France
  

Kelly Services Interim

Competences RH
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services France S.A.)   

France
  

Kelly Formation

Kelly Services Luxembourg S.A.R.L.   Luxembourg   Kelly Services



SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT (continued)
 Kelly Services, Inc.
 

Subsidiary

  

State/Jurisdiction
of Incorporation

  

Business Name

Kelly Services Italia Srl
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services, Inc. and Kelly Properties, Inc.)   

Italy
  

Kelly Services

Kelly Services (Societa di fornitura di lavoro temporaneo) SpA
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services, Inc. and Kelly Properties, Inc.)   

Italy
  

Kelly Services Italia SpA

Kelly Services Empleo Empresa de Trabajo Temporal, S.L.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services Iberia Holding Company, S.L.)   

Spain
  

Kelly Services E.T.T.

Kelly Services Seleccion y Formacion, S.L.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services Iberia Holding Company, S.L.)   

Spain
  

Kelly Services

Kelly Services CIS, Inc.   Delaware   ARO Kelly Services CIS, Inc.

ooo Kelly Services CIS   Russia   ooo Kelly Services CIS

Kelly Services Deutschland GmbH   Germany   Kelly Services

Kelly Services Consulting GmbH
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services Deutschland GmbH)   

Germany
  

Kelly Services

Kelly Services Zeitarbeit GmbH & Co. OHG
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services Consulting GmbH and Kelly Services Deutschland GmbH)   

Germany
  

Kelly Services

Kelly Services Personal Marketing GmbH
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services Deutschland GmbH)   

Germany
  

Kelly Services

Kelly Services Training GmbH
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services Deutschland GmbH)   

Germany
  

Kelly Services

Kelly Services Interim (Belgium) S.A., N.V.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services, Inc. and Kelly Properties, Inc.)   

Belgium
  

Kelly Services Interim

Kelly Services Select (Belgium) S.A., N.V.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services, Inc. and Kelly Properties, Inc.)   

Belgium
  

Kelly Services Select

Kelly Services Sverige AB   Sweden   Help Personal A.B.



SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT (continued)
 Kelly Services, Inc.
 

Subsidiary

  

State/Jurisdiction
of Incorporation

  

Business Name

LabStaff Pty. Ltd.
(a subsidiary of Kelly Services (Australia), Ltd.)   

Australia
  

LabStaff

Kelly Services (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.   Singapore   Business Trends

BTI Consultants Pte. Ltd.
(a subsidiary of Business Trends Pte. Ltd.)   

Singapore
  

BTI Consultants

Kelly Services (Malaysia) SDN. BHD.   Malaysia   Business Trends

Agensi Pekerjaan BTI Consultants SDN. BHD.   Malaysia   BTI Consultants

Kelly Receivables Services, LLC   Delaware   Kelly Receivables Services

BTI Consultants (India) Private Limited   India   BTI Consultants

Kelly Services India Private Limited
(a subsidiary of BTI Consultants (India) Pvt. Ltd.)   

India
  

Kelly Services

BTI Consultants Hong Kong Limited   Hong Kong   BTI Consultants

Kelly Services Hong Kong Limited   Hong Kong   Kelly Services

BTI Executive Placement (Thailand) Co. Ltd.   Thailand   BTI Consultants

PT Kelly Services Indonesia   Indonesia   BTI Consultants

Kelly Management Services, Srl.   Italy   Kelly Management Services



Exhibit 23
 CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
 
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (Nos. 33-48782 and 33-51239), Form S-3 (No. 333-79329) and
Form S-4 (No. 333-37660) of Kelly Services, Inc. of our report dated January 20, 2004 relating to the financial statements and financial statement schedule,
which appears in this Form 10-K.
 
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Detroit, Michigan
February 18, 2004



Exhibit 24
 POWER OF ATTORNEY
 

Each of the undersigned directors of Kelly Services, Inc. does hereby appoint of George M. Reardon and William K. Gerber, signing singly, his true and
lawful attorneys, to execute for and on behalf of the undersigned the Form 10-K Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 for the fiscal year ending December 28, 2003, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in Washington, D.C. under the provisions of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any and all amendments to said 10-K whether said amendments add to, delete from, or otherwise alter the
Form 10-K, or add to or withdraw any exhibit or exhibits, schedule or schedules to be filed therewith, and any and all instruments necessary or incidental in
connection therewith, hereby granting unto said attorneys and each of them full power and authority to do and perform in the name and on behalf of each of the
undersigned, and in any and all capacities, every act and thing whatsoever required or necessary to be done in the exercise of any of the rights and powers herein
granted, as fully and to all intents and purposes as each of the undersigned might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and approving the acts of said attorneys
and each of them.
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have caused this Power of Attorney to be executed as of this 9th day of February, 2004.
 

/s/ Terence E. Adderley

Terence E. Adderley

/s/ Maureen A. Fay, O.P.

Maureen A. Fay, O.P.

/s/ Cedric V. Fricke

Cedric V. Fricke

/s/ Verne G. Istock

Verne G. Istock

/s/ B. Joseph White

B. Joseph White

/s/ Carl T. Camden

Carl T. Camden



Exhibit 31.1
 CERTIFICATIONS
 
I, Terence E. Adderley, certify that:
 1.  I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kelly Services, Inc.;
 2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

 
Date: February 18, 2004
 

/s/    Terence E. Adderley
Terence E. Adderley
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
 CERTIFICATIONS
 
I, William K. Gerber, certify that:
 1.  I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kelly Services, Inc.;
 2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

 
Date: February 18, 2004

 
/s/    William K. Gerber
William K. Gerber
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with the Annual Report of Kelly Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 28, 2003 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Terence E. Adderley, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 (1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 (2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date:  February 18, 2004
 

/s/    Terence E. Adderley
Terence E. Adderley
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Kelly Services, Inc. and will be retained by Kelly Services, Inc. and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with the Annual Report of Kelly Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 28, 2003 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William K. Gerber, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 (1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 (2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: February 18, 2004
 

/s/    William K. Gerber
William K. Gerber
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Kelly Services, Inc. and will be retained by Kelly Services, Inc. and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


